# QUEANBEYAN DISTRICT CRICKET CLUB Inc.

www.queanbeyancricket.com



**Equitas, Instituto et Prosperitas** 

## "The Mighty Bluebags"

## 2010-2011 ANNUAL REPORT

## **Table of Contents**

CLUB HISTORY	3
2010-2011 COMMITTEE	4
LIFE MEMBER REGISTER	6
CLUB SPONSORS & SUPPORTERS	7
VALE – WALTER JOHN SOLWAY	8
PRESIDENT'S REPORT	9
SECRETARY'S REPORT	13
TREASURER'S REPORT	19
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	20
MAJOR AWARD WINNERS	21
2010-2011 CLUB PERFORMANCES	23
PLAYER MILESTONES	25
REPRESENTATIVE HONOURS	27
& GRADE AWARDS	27
SCORECARDS	29
1st Grade Final John Gallop Cup Final 5th Grade – Final Twenty/20-Division 2 Final	29 31 32 33
FIRST GRADE REPORT	34
SECOND GRADE REPORT	40
THIRD GRADE REPORT	43
FOURTH GRADE REPORT	45
FIFTH GRADE REPORT	48
WOMEN'S TEAM REPORTS	51
CLUB RECORDS	55
APPENDIX A – SEASON STATISTICS	61
BATTING BOWLING WICKET-KEEPING & FIELDING	61 64 67

## **Club History**

(Since 1972)

YEAR         PATRON         PRESIDENT         SECRETARY         TREASURER         CLUB COAC COORDINATE           72-73         N/A         C Berry         L Buckley         R Davis         R Flockton           73-74         N/A         C Berry         Mrs S McDonald         R Davis         R Flockton		CLUB CHAMPION T Waters
72-73 N/A C Berry L Buckley R Davis R Flockton	R Flockton R Flockton	T Waters
	R Flockton	
L/3-74 LIN/A LUBERTY LIMITS NICLOMAID LE DAVIS LE FLOCKTON		B Rogers
74-75 N/A C Berry Mrs S McDonald T Waters R Flockton	It I location	R Coffey
75-76 N/A C Berry R Sadler R Davis R Flockton	R Flockton	C Dooley
76-77 N/A W McDonald R Sadler R Harding N/A	B O'Connell	R Heading
77-78 N/A R Hatch S Bailey A Hodgson N/A	L Buckley	W Campbell
78-79 N/A R Hatch S Bailey A Hodgson G Samuels	G Samuels	W Campbell
79-80 N/A R Hatch S Bailey D Murphy G Samuels	G Samuels	N Bulger/C Berry
80-81 N/A R Hatch S Bailey D Murphy / G Samuels	G Samuels	N Bulger
C Brown	Gamacis	TV Buiger
81-82 N/A S Bailey R Longmore D Halzhauser G Samuels	G Samuels	N Bulger
82-83 N/A S Bailey/R Hatch R Longmore G Mann G Samuels	G Samuels	W Campbell
83-84 I McNamee G Samuels M Allen G Mann G Samuels	G Samuels	M Lynch
84-85 I McNamee G Mann R Carruthers J Solway W Campbell	N Bulger	Not Awarded
85-86 I McNamee G Mann R Carruthers J Solway M Thornton	M Thornton	J Bull
86-87 I McNamee P Moon R Carruthers J Solway M Thornton	M Thornton	J Bull
87-88 I McNamee P Moon R Carruthers J Solway M Thornton	M Thornton	M Carruthers
88-89 I McNamee P Moon R Carruthers J Solway M Thornton	M Thornton	M Frost
89-90 I McNamee P Moon C Ball I Hamill J Bull	J Bull	P Solway
90-91 I McNamee P Moon J Solway I Hamill J Bull	J Bull	P Solway
91-92 I McNamee P Moon R Carruthers J Solway P Solway	P Solway	N Bulger
92-93 I McNamee R Winchester M Carruthers J Solway P Solway	P Solway	J Bull
93-94 I McNamee R Winchester M Carruthers M Lynch N/A	M Frost	R Regent
94-95 I McNamee R Winchester M Carruthers H Greenwell J Bull	J Bull	N Bulger
95-96 I McNamee R Winchester M Carruthers H Greenwell S O'Shaughnessy	S O'Shaughnessy	C Scammell
96-97 I McNamee R Winchester M Carruthers H Greenwell R Regent	R Regent	N Bulger
97-98 I McNamee R Winchester M Carruthers M Lynch R Regent	R Regent	M Higgs
98-99 I McNamee R Winchester M Carruthers M Lynch C Hume	J Swift	J Martin
99-00 I McNamee R Winchester M Carruthers A King C Hume	J Swift	J Swift
00-01 I McNamee R Winchester A King Ms S McGlashan C Hume	J Swift	J Swift
01-02 I McNamee M Frost C Doyle Ms S McGlashan P Nemes	M O'Rourke	A Heading
02-03 I McNamee M Frost S Cross Ms S McGlashan P Nemes	M O'Rourke	S Frost
03-04 I McNamee M Frost S Cross Ms S McGlashan P Nemes	S Frost	G McMahon
04-05 I McNamee M Frost S Cross Ms S McGlashan P Baker	P Coleborne	A Heading
05-06 I McNamee M Frost S Cross Ms S McGlashan P Baker	A Heading	P Jensen
06-07 I McNamee M Frost S Cross P Coleborne P Baker	M Higgs	M Higgs
07-08 I McNamee I McNamee S Cross G Elliott P Baker	M Higgs	M Higgs
08-09 I McNamee I McNamee R Bates G Elliott P Solway/M Frost	M Higgs	J Dean
09-10 I McNamee I McNamee R Bates G Elliott P Solway/J Dean	J Dean	J Dean/M Higgs
10-11 I McNamee I McNamee R Bates G Elliott P Solway/J Dean	J Dean	M Higgs

#### **Editors Note**

I would like to thank the following people whose contributions for this report were invaluable.

Ian McNamee, Gordon Elliott, Dave Corcoran, Peter Solway, Rohan Ditton, Michael Frost, Peter Jensen, Charlotte Anneveld and Georgie Leahey-Butler

A full colour copy of this report will be available for downloading from the Club Business page from our website.

Ron Bates

## **2010-2011 Committee**

## Executive

**Patron & President** 



Mr Ian McNamee

Vice President & Chairman of Selectors

Vice President & Coaching Coordinator

Honorary Secretary

Honorary Treasurer



THE PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF TH





**Mr Stephen Cross** 

**Mr Peter Solway** 

Mr Ron Bates

**Mr Gordon Elliott** 

#### Curator

Management Committee
Webmaster &
Publicity Officer









**Mr Greg Dawes** 

**Mr Shane Martin** 

Mr Peter Jensen

**Mr Rohan Ditton** 

## **Management Committee**



Mr Graeme McLennan



Mr John Fern



Mr Lea Hansen



Ms Sarah McGlashan



Mr Peter Baker

**Club Captains** 



**Ms Charlotte Anneveld** 

1st Grade



Jono Dean

4<sup>th</sup> Grade



Peter Coleborne



**Peter Solway** 



**Rohan Ditton** 



**Pete Jensen** 



**Charlotte Anneveld** 

## Life Member Register

Jack McNamara (dec) Frank Nash (dec) Doug Moore (dec) John Solway (dec) Tan Armour Col Berry Ray Hatch Gary Samuels Steve Bailey Richard Carruthers Ian McNamee Neil Bulger Michael Frost Stephen Cross Peter Solway

## **Club Sponsors & Supporters**

The Queanbeyan District Cricket Club would like to thank the following businesses and organisations for their support for the 2010-2011 season:

## Major Sponsor Queanbeyan Kangaroo Club Ltd



#### **Other Sponsors/Supporters**





















## Vale – Walter John Solway

6 August 1936 - 26 March 2011



Saturday 26 March 2011 will go down as a bitter sweet day in the history of the Queanbeyan District Cricket Club. With grandsons Dean and Mark (12th man) participating in the successful First Grade Grand Final winning team against Tuggeranong, Life Member, John Solway lost his battle with cancer and passed away at the age of 74.

John, or Jack as he was also known around our Club, was a true cricket follower. In his younger years he played first grade cricket in Tamworth and specialised in bowling off spinners. Due to regular transfers around country NSW with his employer the National Australia Bank, Jack retired from the game. Whilst in the far North West town of Moree, Jack started up the junior cricket competition. This was the first of many years where he would coach junior teams, put his hand up to be on committees and give generously of his time to support cricket.

Jack performed a number of roles for both the Queanbeyan Junior and Senior Cricket Clubs during his 37 year association with our Club. After arriving in Queanbeyan in 1974 he commenced coaching my U/11 junior team. These were great days and provided many fond and lasting memories. Wonderful friendships were struck with the Carruthers, Winchester and Cuschieri families with all the boys (Michael, Rodney and Roger) going on to play first grade cricket with Queanbeyan.

Jack then moved on to the Queanbeyan Senior Club after our junior days were over and took on the role of Treasurer from 1984 to 1989 and Club Secretary from 1990 to 1991. He also performed the role of curator for our club along with Richard Carruthers during the 1980's at the Margaret Donoghue Sportsground. It was also in the 80's that Jack teamed up with President, Phil Moon and Secretary Richard Carruthers to form a strong executive base for the club and it was in this period the Queanbeyan first grade team won 5 premierships in 7 years......a golden era for the Club.

Jack was awarded Life Membership of our Club in 1991 for his dedication, commitment and service, an honour which he was extremely proud to receive. I know Dad would have been honoured with the wonderful show of support from the local cricketing community at his funeral and our family sincerely thanks all those who were able to attend.

Finally, I can't remember Jack missing too many Queanbeyan games throughout my cricketing career and I know he loved watching Dean and Mark play the game. As a father and grandparent there was no greater supporter. As a cricket administrator he worked tirelessly and did so with a minimum of fuss. As a person he was a good man and great mate. Honest, supportive, hard working and caring. He is a great role model for us all.

Jack's presence around our Club will be missed but never forgotten.

Peter Solway

## **President's Report**

On behalf of the committee for the Queanbeyan District Cricket Club, I present this Annual Report.

After a history that dates back to the 1860's, we are now on the brink of having our new pavilion built between Freebody 1 and 2 ovals with arrangements being finalised for the construction for the building to be hopefully completed in the first quarter of 2012. Thanks to Dr. Mike Kelly for his efforts and arranging funding and the cooperation of Mayor Tim Overall, and the staff of Queanbeyan City Council.

This has again been a successful year for the Queanbeyan District Cricket Club, and whilst there is not as much silverware in the cabinet as last year, our on-field performances have been exceptional.

Four years ago the club was experiencing financial difficulties and also struggling on the field, however, due to the effort of many, and I will at this stage only mention some at the risk of perhaps missing 1 or 2, the efforts of Ron Bates as Secretary, Gordon Elliott as Treasurer and Peter Solway as Vice President, the club has been integral to the club turning around both on and off the field.

Stephen Cross, Peter Baker, Rohan Ditton and Michael Frost together with the curating efforts of Greg Dawes have been another significant reason the club is now in the position it is in and regarded as the benchmark of grade clubs in the ACT competition.

The club however, should not be complacent about its current position. I do believe that the new building will assist in the club becoming more family orientated and ensure a closer link with the junior club. It was noticeable at the ACT junior presentation, that even though the club finished quite high in the club championship for all junior clubs, it did not participate in any finals.

All teams had a number of ACT junior representative players which is excellent from the long term point of view for the club however; at the same time we do require more "experienced" players to assist the youngsters in their progression through into senior grade cricket.

#### **Milestones:**

Congratulations to the following players who achieved significant milestones during the season. In the new pavilion we plan to have a number of honour boards with details of milestones, past award winners, past and current office holders, life members and other notable and historic achievements.

Graeme Alexander – 300 matches Stephen Frost – 300 matches Peter Solway – 250 matches Stephen Cross – 250 matches Jim Martin – 250 matches Ron McGlashan – 250 matches Peter Coleborne – 200 matches

#### **Team performances:**

- 2nd in Club Championship
- 1st grade 'back to back' Premierships (Douglas Cup/Random Computing Shield)
- 1st grade John Gallop Trophy (One day Premiership)
- 5th grade Premiership (undefeated)
- Division 2 Twenty/20 winners
- 4th grade narrowly losing 2 day final



The Trophy Cabinet

I must also acknowledge the performance of the Queanbeyan Women's Premier League team, who were runners up in the Premier League Competition. The Glenda Hall and second grade were successful in the T20 – our thanks for the assistance of Peter Baker (Coach) and Charlotte Anneveld (Captain) in this respect.

#### **Individual Performances:**

- Aaron Ayre 1003 runs and 35 dismissals he only turned 18 in January which highlights just what an amazing performance this is for a young player in his first year at the club.
- The mercurial Mark Higgs, DB Robin Medal winner 758 runs and 46 wickets plus captained the ACT Comets to first ever title in the Cricket Australia Futures League.
- Darren Southwell 51 wickets at 13.5 he is now off to the UK to show his stuff.
- Peter Coleborne 930 runs Peter is also off to the UK.

Queanbeyan again provided a record number of representative players not only to the ACT Comets but also throughout the junior teams and the Women's teams. A list is provided later in the report but this again shows that we are in a strong position to develop, recruit and retain high quality players.



Rohan Ditton, Ian McNamee and Stephen Cross

At the DB Robin night, Lord Taverner's Volunteer's Awards were presented to Rohan Ditton and Stephen Cross which were richly deserved.

Things have changed from my playing days, where it was only a 2 day competition and rep games were played on Sundays, to now where there are 3 distinct competitions and it may well be the case in the future where players may be available for 1 or 2 of those particular competitions and it is something that the club needs to prepare for when it begins recruiting and retaining players for season 2011/2012.

It is also crucial that contact with our current members, past members, life members and sponsors is regularly carried out as this has been one thing lacking in past years. As we approach our 150th anniversary it is important that we reflect on out past and embrace our traditions and our wonderful history but to look and plan for the future.

The loss of life member John Solway was a downside to an exciting year. His memory will remain through Peter and grandson's Dean and Mark and son in law Gordon Elliott.

This is my final year as President of this Legendary Cricket Club however, I would be happy to continue as a 30 year patron and be involved in the construction of our Pavilion. I would also be available to be on the finance and sponsorship committee and as required going forward. I congratulate all the players, officials and supporters on a fantastic 2010-2011 and look forward to the exciting years ahead.

Ian McNamee Patron & President



The scoreboard tells it all



Mick Carruthers, Mark Thornton and Peter Solway proudly display the Douglas Cup.

## Secretary's Report

For the second year running, I begin my report on a sad note. On the day the club was taking the first grade final by the throat, John Solway passed away after valiantly battling cancer for the past few months. On the positive side, I was amazed at the turnout at his funeral. It was so pleasing to see what a contribution this man has made not only to cricket, but to the Queanbeyan community as well. Jack, you will be missed but not forgotten.

#### On field.

This year proved that the exploits of the previous season were not a 'fluke', with first grade defending the Douglas Cup/Random Computing Shield as well as retaining the One-day Title now known as the John Gallop Cup. Unfortunately we could not defend our Twenty/20 title, which is now the Konica Cup, losing in a pretty one sided match against a red hot Tuggeranong team. However by comprehensively beating Tuggers in both the Douglas and Gallop Cups extracted more than enough revenge.

We also finished 2nd in the club championship by 2 points. I won't dwell on some of the anomalies on how the championship is determined suffice to say that I believe it needs to be looked at. When you look at the final wash up of the season, it is clear to see that both Queanbeyan and Tuggeranong were the stand out clubs, yet this was not reflected in the end result. However congratulations must go to North Canberra-Gungahlin who last won the championship in 1977 (as Northern Suburbs).

Our Division 2 Twenty/20 team were victorious in winning the inaugural competition. The team (which was made up of a combination of players from 2nd to 4th grade) was superbly led by Pete Coleborne and were undefeated in taking out the cup. The final against Ginninderra turned into a one sided affair, with the team winning only 1 wicket down with plenty of balls to spare.

To add to this 5th grade went through the season undefeated to claim its first premiership title since winning the competition in 1996-97. Whilst there were some fine individual performances during the year, success was built on solid team performances, with every single player contributing at one time or another. In his 4th season as captain, Jenno and the lads finally enjoyed the sweet taste of success. I must also acknowledge Troy Drayton, who selflessly volunteered to assist an injury depleted 4th grade in their attempt to chase down a title.

Commiserations go Rohan Ditton and a very gallant 4th grade team, who fought their way into the Two day decider against minor premiers Northies. Every player gave their all in a very tough encounter to go within 2 wickets of victory. It was pleasing to see that a couple of youngster had outstanding seasons in Alex Page and Justin Brownbill. Matt Donnelly (son of Fossil) had a reasonable start to his grade career and he will no doubt improve immensely on the experience he gained this season.

Under the leadership of Pete Coleborne, 2nd grade made the semi-finals of both the one-day comp and two-day comp. Unfortunately they came up against a very strong Tuggeranong team in both games and couldn't quite match the deeds of last season.

Peter Solway took over the reins of 3rd grade and luck was not with him this year. In the Div 3 T/20 comp they did not play a game due to poor weather. The team made the one-day final against last year's winners Northies. In what was not one of their better games, they were comfortably beaten. Weather also was unkind in the two-day matches with 4 of the 7 games being affected by weather and they missed a place in the two day finals.

Under the guidance of Peter Baker and the captaincy of Meteor player Charlotte Anneveld, the Jet Set Travel (Queanbeyan) team squeaked into the final of the 50 over competition but could not topple minor premiers Lord Taverner's (Tuggeranong) in a tight final. The Glenda Hall team also did well, despite struggling for numbers at times. There are a number of very promising juniors coming through who are already displaying the skills that should take them onto higher representative honours.

I would also like to congratulate those players who achieved a personal milestone this year. Some achievements may be missed, to which I apologise for. This is due to ongoing project to enter the old stats into the MyCricket system. This applies for some achievements that omitted from last year's report and are duly acknowledged below.

Matches			
Graeme Alexander	316	Simon Mann	100
Stephen Frost	305	Nick Harvey	65
Stephen Cross	275	Jono Dean	64
Jim Martin	254	Ron Bates	64
Peter Solway	253	Philip Moore	61
Ron McGlashan	252	Vanessa Picker	58
Peter Coleborne	202	Shane Martin	57
Darren Southwell	166	Jack Murdoch	52
Dean Southwell	158		
Runs			
Michael Frost	11139	Dean Mansfield	3453
Peter Solway	7827	Jono Dean	2799
Stephen Frost	7762	Peter Newham	2579
Peter Coleborne	5714	Greg Dawes	2305
John Bull	5321	Dave Corcoran	1806
Stephen Cross	4669	Dean Southwell	1272
Mark Higgs	4531	Aaron Thorn	1097
Graeme Alexander	4019		
Wickets			
Ron McGlashan	417	Dean Southwell	250
Graeme Alexander	396	Peter Newham	213
Colin Crouch	335	Stephen Frost	202
Mark Higgs	291	Dave Corcoran	57
Darren Southwell	254	Vele Dukoski	57

I would like to pass on congratulations personally received from Dr Mike Kelly (Federal Member for Eden-Monaro), Mr John Barrilaro (State Member for Monaro) and Cr Tim Overall (Mayor, Queanbeyan City Council) on another successful year.

#### Off Field

This year in many ways mirrored last season from an administrative/financial view. There were a couple of changes in the committee this year, with Shane Martin, John Fern and Sarah McGlashan coming on board. Stepping down after many years on the committee was Dean Mansfield. Also stepping down were Ben Stensrud, Graham Hannaford, Ian Hamill and James Buckley. Due to personal reason's Peter Baker stepped down as Vice President and resigned from the committee. Fortunately Peter's vast experience was not wasted as he stayed on in the role of our Grade Committee Representative. With Peter's resignation, the Committee appointed Stephen Cross as Vice President.

With Dean Mansfield and James Buckley no longer on the committee, Shane Martin took on the role of Webmaster and Publicity Officer with great enthusiasm. Due to family reasons, Shane has had to move back to Port Macquarie. Good luck and best wishes mate.

The Annual Dinner and Awards Presentation Night was again a great night and congratulations go to all the award recipients. I would like to thank Graeme McLennan for taking on the role of Master of Ceremonies. Graeme did a great job and kept things moving all night. I would also like to acknowledge the efforts of the organising committee of Rohan Ditton, Stephen Cross, Greg Dawes and Michael Frost. A big thanks to all involved.

It was quite interesting to listen to Queanbeyan Mayor Cr. Tim Overall's speech. Tim mentioned that the council's original application funding, on our behalf, was unsuccessful due to a number of factors (which I won't go into). It is therefore fortuitous that our club has a Patron and President of the ilk of Ian McNamee, who personally took charge of trying to secure the necessary Federal Government funding. Without Ian's drive, enthusiasm and love for the club (not to forget his connections), we could be waiting another 100 years for our own club rooms. In this regard, I would also like to personally thank Dr Mike Kelly MP for his ongoing support for the club.



The Official Announcement of Funding for the QDCC Pavilion Freebody Park, August 2010

Dr Mike Kelly MP, Ron Bates, Ian McNamee, Mark Solway, Dean Solway & Matt Chapman

This year saw the return of the 'Annual' Quiz night. It was a great night and very well attended, all teams (well nearly all teams) were well represented. A huge thanks goes to Peter Jensen (host and quizmaster), Ron McGlashan (judge and scorekeeper) and Cath Elliott for their efforts in making it a great night.

QDCC, like every sports club nowadays, would find it hard to survive without the financial assistance of the business community. So I would also like to acknowledge this support from our sponsors - The Queanbeyan Kangaroos Football Club, Ian McNamee & Partners, Bendigo Bank, ActewAGL, Baker Deanne & Nutt, CIC Australia, J & J Interiors, and LJ Hooker Financial Services.

I would also like to acknowledge the financial or other support provided by the following business as well:

- Spaseski and Associates,
- Frank Wilson Solicitors,
- Lindbeck's Butchery,
- Intelligent Alarms and Monitoring Services,
- Fosters Australia,
- Andrew Deane Insurance Services and
- Sportsman's Warehouse.

I must not forget to acknowledge the support that was provided to the club from the staff of Queanbeyan City Council who is always ready to provide assistance whenever it was required.

This season the club decided to undertake another major raffle and Stephen Cross again put his hand up to be the organiser. The prizes were supplied by Peter Lovett of Driver Avenue Group, courtesy of Brad Haddin, of a Kookaburra Cricket Kit and a personally signed Australia One-day vest. Pat McCudden of Queanbeyan Massage Centre provided a gift voucher which we used as 3rd prize. The tickets were sold during the PM's XI match against England. Besides Stephen, Ron McGlashan, Jim Martin, Matt Donnelly and I were the major ticket sellers on the day however Dean Mansfield, Pete Coleborne, Jeremy Macdonald and Michael Medved also gave a hand during the lunch break. The club donated \$200 from the proceeds to the Prostate Cancer Council.



Ron Bates (left) shows the winning ticket drawn by Tim Mathieson. Chris MacPherson (right) drew 2nd and 3rd prizes.

I would also like to thank Dean Mansfield, Steve Cross, Rohan Ditton, Jim Martin, Michael Frost (plus Sam and a couple of his footy mates) who joined with me to assist the Salvation Army with their Red Shield Appeal this year. At least this year was a fine and sunny day. We raised nearly \$1500, our best effort so far.

The club would struggle, if not grind to a halt, without people willing to put up their hand to do those little jobs that help keep a club going. To this end I would like to thank Alan Macdonald, Peta Mannix, Julie Solway, Cath Elliott and Liam Baker for volunteering their time and effort during the season.

Thanks go to Josh Spasaro and towards the end of the season Andrew Johnston, who took over from Josh as the Sports Reporter for the Queanbeyan Age for their efforts in helping keep our club at the forefront of sports news each week. Also helping keep the club in the public domain, I would also like to thank Pete 'Nook' Newham for having firstly Shane and then myself, present the Bluebags Review as part of his weekly sports show on Queanbeyan 96.7 FM.

During the season there was a bit of a baby boom and our cricket family increased with the addition of –

- Matilda (Jim and Linda Martin)
- Lara (Michael and Lyndall Frost)
- Jordan (Dean and Victoria Mansfield)
- Cooper (Simon Fahey and Jenna Oakley)
- Leah (Adam and Angela Heading)
- Stella (Brendan and Rachel MacNamara)

Finally, to the wives, partners, girlfriends and families of all the committee members who, not only assisted with the various functions and tasks, but just as important, provided their understanding, generosity and support to their respective partners which is duly acknowledged and sincerely appreciated.

#### **QDCC Inaugural Golf Day**

The staging of the inaugural Queanbeyan Cricket Club Golf Day was a raging success and a great way to wrap up our season. 23 groups of 4 players participated in a 4 person Ambrose event at the Queanbeyan Golf Club on a beautiful April day. Some excellent golf was witnessed throughout the afternoon with the grouping led by John Bull and Adrian Brunker winning the event.

Thanks to all the sponsors below for supporting the event:

- Roo's Club
- Jim Woods
- Business innovations
- The Good Guys Tuggeranong
- Griffith Newsagency
- Canberra Horticulture
- Mortgage Port
- Rod Kildey & the Queanbeyan Pro Shop
- Complete Security
- Sportsman's Warehouse
- BCF
- Fosters

Also huge thanks to David Ayre, Graeme McLennan and Peter Solway for assisting in the organisation of the day. Also thanks to all the players and supporters of the Club who played on the day. This was a great initiative and I am sure that next year will be bigger and better.

#### The Future

Well, despite the hiccough with the original application for funding, the subsequent application for funds to build our pavilion has been approved by the Federal Government. The first step in the process has been completed with over a dozen companies lodging an 'Expression of Interest'.

The next step will be to narrow down the list to 3 or 4 companies who will be invited to lodge a tender. If everything goes to plan, the successful tenderer will be announced later this year, with construction starting towards the end of the season. This will mean that the Pavilion should be ready for the start of the 2012/13 season.

#### **Club History**

I am also, with the assistance of Michael Frost, researching our club history. My initial investigation has utilised the resources of Trove Online Newspapers (courtesy of the National Library of Australia), to find records on the club's formation. My initial investigations have indicated that the club was founded many years before the currently accepted establishment date of 1921/1922. How far back is yet to be established.

Part 1 of my project, will be compiling a historical document, referencing newspaper articles on various activities of the club, mainly meetings and matches up to 1922.

Ron Bates Honorary Secretary

#### **Committee Meeting Attendance Register**

Name	No Meetings	Attendance	Apology
Ian McNamee	9	5	4*
Peter Solway	9	8	1
Stephen Cross	9	8	1
Ron Bates	9	9	0
Gordon Elliott	9	5	4
Greg Dawes	9	7	1
Rohan Ditton	9	6	3
John Fern	9	6	3
Peter Jensen	9	5	4
Lea Hansen	9	8	1
Shane Martin	8	5	3
Sarah McGlashan	7**	2	5
Graeme McLennan	9	4	4
Charlotte Anneveld	6	1	4
Peter Baker	4**	2	2

<sup>\*</sup> Ian was attending meetings with either Cricket Australia or ACTCA in his role as President of the Association.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Resigned during the season

## Treasurer's Report

.

The club realised an operating surplus for 2010-11 of \$9,739 and continued the Club's strong financial performances over the past few years. The result reflected continued strong support from the local business community including from its major sponsor The Queanbeyan Kangaroos Rugby Leagues Club. Other major supporters were Ian McNamee and Partners Real Estate, the Bendigo Bank, ActewAGL, The Sportsman's Warehouse, Baker Deane & Nutt, and LJ Hookers. The Queanbeyan City Council again delivered 3 high quality and well maintained cricket grounds throughout the season.

The Club has maintained a high standard of prepared cricket pitches and was again selected by ACT Cricket to host several representative matches and this has had a major impact on the favourable operating result.

The Club also held several successful fund raising events including a raffle at the PMs 11 Cricket Match, a Trivia Night, and a highly successful Golf Day. The General Committee should also be congratulated in its continued prudent management of its operations which has been a major factor in the overall financial result.

The club's Balance Sheet at 31 May 2011 reflects a strong position which will allow the General Committee the opportunity to invest further in playing and ground equipment for future seasons.

Gordon Elliott Honorary Treasurer

## **Financial Statements**

as at 31<sup>st</sup> May 2011

<b>Income and Expenditure Statement 2010-11</b>				
Income				
Memberships	\$16,237			
Sponsorships	\$34,138			
Pitch Preparations	\$3,640			
ACTCA Grants/reimbursements	\$21,576			
Fundraising – Raffles	\$7,814			
Presentation Night	\$4,897			
Interest	\$790			
Misc Income	\$1,785			
Discounts Received	\$0			
Total Income	\$90,877			
Expenses				
ACTCA Charges	\$15,508			
Administrative Costs	\$10,918			
Clothing	\$3,187			
Coaching	\$6,890			
Curator	\$13,200			
Equipment	\$5,583			
Ground Hire & Equipment	\$17,608			
Presentation Night	\$5,737			
Presentation trophies	\$1,008			
Misc	\$1,500			
Total Expenses	\$81,138			
Surplus/(Deficit)	\$9,739			

Balance Sh	eet	
Assets		
Cash & Cash Equivalents		\$41,331
Trade Debtors		\$0
<b>Total Assets</b>		\$41,331
Liabilities – Current		
Trade & Other Payables		\$0
	Sub-total	\$0
Liabilities – Long Term		
		\$0
	Sub-total	\$0
<b>Total Liabilities</b>		\$0
Net Assets/Liabilities		\$41,331
Equity		
Asset Development Reserve		\$31,592
Current Year Surplus/Deficit		\$9,739
Total Equity		\$41,331
Notes:	·	

The establishment of the Asset Development Reserve was endorsed by the QDCC

**1.** Balance represents bank account balances as at 31/5/11.

## **Major Award Winners**

Queanbeyan Kangaroos Football Club Trophy Club Champion



**Mark Higgs** 

Malcolm Allen Memorial Trophy Clubperson of the Year



**Peter Solway** 

Luke Bush Memorial Trophy



**Aaron Ayre** 

President's Award



**Stephen Cross** 

**Neil Bulger Trophy** 



**Aaron Ayre** 

**Garry Samuels Trophy** 



**Mark Higgs** 

Greg Mann Memorial Trophy Players Player



**Darren Southwell** 

John Solway Spirit of Cricket Award



**Chris Doyle** 

#### **Individual Grade Awards**

**Batting** 

1<sup>st</sup> Grade:
Aaron Ayre
2<sup>nd</sup> Grade:
Peter Coleborne

3<sup>rd</sup> Grade:

Michael Frost (agg) Peter Solway (ave)

4<sup>th</sup> Grade: Rohan Ditton 5<sup>th</sup> Grade:

Adrian Brunker (agg) Jim Martin (ave) Women (P/L):

Charlotte Anneveld

Women (G/H): Pip Taylor

**Bowling** 

1<sup>st</sup> Grade: Mark Higgs 2<sup>nd</sup> Grade:

Darren Southwell (agg) Lakshmn Shivakkumar

(ave)

3<sup>rd</sup> Grade: Mark Solway 4<sup>th</sup> Grade: Peter Newham

5<sup>th</sup> Grade: Jim Martin

Women (P/L):

Women (G/H):

Charlotte Anneveld

Kirsten Frkic

**Outstanding Achievements** 

**Centurions:** 

• Aaron Ayre (154, 109)

• Mark Higgs (112)

• Jonathon Dean (107)

• Adrian Brunker (107)

• Rohan Ditton (106)

• Andrew Beattie (106)

• Peter Coleborne (101, 100)

#### 5 wkts Innings:

- Lea Hansen (6/14)
- Darren Southwell (6/51 & 6/87)
- Troy Drayton (5/28)
- Mark Higgs (5/31 & 5/32)
- John Fern (5/32)
- Dean Southwell (5/56)

#### **Hat Tricks**

• Jim Martin (3/37)

## **2010-2011 Club Performances**

#### **Top 10 Batting Performances**

(across all grades and ranked on total runs)

	Player	Mtchs	Inn	NO	100s	50s	HS	Runs	Ave
1	Aaron Ayre	20	21	1	2	4	154	1003	50.15
2	Peter Coleborne	22	20	5	2	6	101*	930	62.00
3	Mark Higgs	20	20	1	1	6	112	758	39.89
4	Michael Spaseski	19	18	3	0	4	67	484	32.27
5	Rohan Ditton	13	14	0	1	3	106	422	30.14
6	Jono Dean	16	16	1	1	2	107*	418	27.87
7	Blake Dean	21	21	0	0	1	81	374	17.81
8	Simon Mackie	20	18	3	0	1	54*	370	24.67
9	Balinder Khillan-Singh	11	11	3	0	1	88*	353	44.13
10	Adrian Brunker	15	12	2	1	1	107*	350	35.00

#### **Top 10 Bowling Performances**

(across all grades and ranked on total wickets)

	Player	Mtchs	О	M	$\mathbf{W}$	R	5Wi	10Wm	B/B	Ave
1	Darren Southwell	17	289	61	51	710	2	0	6/51	13.92
2	Mark Higgs	20	247.5	56	46	669	1	0	5/31	14.54
3	Dean Southwell	20	189.4	39	39	579	1	0	5/56	17.48
4	Blake Dean	21	168.4	23	32	564	0	0	3/10	18.68
5	Lakshmn Shivakkumar	17	101.4	18	26	315	0	0	4/3	12.12
6	Troy Drayton	10	122.1	23	24	315	1	0	5/28	13.13
7	Luke Ryan	15	128.5	24	23	416	0	0	4/83	18.09
8	James Martin	16	74.1	9	22	230	0	0	4/21	10.45
9	Mark Solway	13	145	21	22	372	0	0	4/25	16.91
10	Sam Taylor	18	133.1	16	22	529	0	0	4/46	24.05

#### **Top 10 All-Round Performances**

(across all grades and ranked on runs & wickets)

	Player	Runs	Ave	HS	Wkts	Ave	B/B
1	Mark Higgs	758	39.89	112	46	14.54	5/31
2	Blake Dean	374	17.81	81	32	18.68	3/10
3	Vele Dukoski	451	20.18	69	21	16.19	3/22
4	Michael Spaseski	484	32.27	67	8	22.63	2/13
5	Balinder Khillan Singh	353	44.13	88*	19	18.95	4/21
6	James Martin	222	44.40	43	22	10.45	4/21
7	Lakshmn Shivakkumar	131	11.91	41	26	12.12	4/3
8	Sam Taylor	113	22.60	28*	22	24.05	4/46
9	David Monck	143	15.89	67	12	15.83	4/25
10	Stephen Frost	118	29.50	52	12	8.83	3/16

**Keeping and Fielding Records** 

		Catches	Catches	Stumpings	Run Outs	Total
	Player	(Non WK)	(WK)			
1	Aaron Ayre		28	6	1	35
2	Phil Moore		23	1	2	26
3	Blake Dean	19			1	20
4	Michael Medved		12	4	0	16
5	Michael Spaseski	11			4	15
6	David Monck	1	9	1	3	14
7	Dave Corcoran	13				13
8	Simon Mackie	10			2	12
9	Jono Dean	8			3	11
10	Adrian Brunker	1	8	1	1	11

## **Player Milestones**

## Matches

	ľ	viactics	
400 Matches	Michael Frost (448)		
300 Matches	Graeme Alexander (316)	Stephen Frost (305)	
250 Matches	Stephen Cross (275) Ron McGlashan (252)	Jim Martin (254)	Peter Solway (253)
200 Matches	Michael Carruthers (239) Ray Hatch (219) Rodney Winchester (211)	Mark Lynch (230) Peter Coleborne (215)	Neil Bulger (221) Simon Fahey (213)
150 Matches	Dean Mansfield (189) Adam Heading (175) Darren Southwell (166) Dean Southwell (158) Alan Hodgson (151) Geoff McMurray (150)	John Bull (189) Steve Bailey (169) Peter Newham (163) Vince Bulger (154) Anthony Wynd (151)	Colin Crouch (184) Col Berry (167) Graham Hannaford (159) Geoff Woods (152) Wayne Campbell (150)
100 Matches	(current players only) Ben Stensrud (145) Ryan Collier (143) Greg Dawes (123) Raglan Maddox(121) Vele Dukoski (102)	Ian Black (145) Mark Higgs (137) Paul Wylks (122) Peter Jensen (120) Simon Mann (100)	John Fern (143) Marty Frost (136) Chris Doyle (122) Rohan Ditton (109)

#### Runs

		Kuns	
10,000	0 Michael Frost (11139)		
7,500	0 Peter Solway (7827)	Stephen Frost (7762)	
5,000	0 Peter Coleborne (5714)	John Bull (5321)	
4,000	O Simon Fahey (4981) Adam Heading (4101)	Stephen Cross (4669) Graeme Alexander (4019)	Mark Higgs (4531)
3,000	<b>0</b> Jim Martin (3789)	Dean Mansfield (3453)	Graham Hannaford (3088)
2,000	0 Peter Jensen (2863) Ron McGlashan (2400) Benjamin Stensrud (2327)	Jonathon Dean (2799) John Fern (2369) Greg Dawes (2305)	Peter Newham (2579) Rohan Ditton (2336) Ian Black (2236)
1,000	0 (current players only) Raglan Maddox (1847) Ryan Collier (1620) Dean Solway (1374) Keifer Martyn (1147)	David Corcoran (1806) Simon Mann (1488) Dean Southwell (1272) Aaron Thorn (1097)	Marty Frost (1788) Vele Dukoski (1483) Guy Walpole (1242) David Monck (1045)
500	Mark Lynch (526)	Wickets	
400	Jim Martin (437)	Ron McGlashan (417)	
300	Graeme Alexander (396) Colin Crouch (335)	Neil Bulger (384) Alan Hodgson (329)	John Bull (372) Scott Bannerman (311)
200	Mark Higgs (291) Winston MacDonald (243) Vince Bulger (218) John Fern (204)	Darren Southwell (254) Dean White (219) Peter Newham (213) Stephen Frost (202)	Dean Southwell (244) Phil Moon (219) Will Rogers (211)
100	(current players only) Adam Heading (184) Ryan Collier (147) Simon Mann (132) Michael Frost (105)	Ian Black (176) Peter Jensen (142) Paul Wylks (128) Dean Stewart (102)	Simon Fahey (161) Lea Hansen (139) Rohan Ditton (107)

# **Representative Honours** & Grade Awards 2010-2011

<b>ACT Comets (Futures League):</b>	Mark Higgs, Dean Southwell, Aaron Ayre,
Peter Solway Medal:	Mark Higgs
ACT Comets Batting Award:	Mark Higgs
ACT Meteors (WNCL):	Charlotte Anneveld, Clare Crewdson, Georgia Elwiss
<b>ACT Meteors Bowling Award:</b>	Charlotte Anneveld
Luke Bush Rising Star Award:	Dean Solway
Australian Country Championships:	Michael Spaseski, Simon Mackie
<b>Australian Country Team:</b>	Michael Spaseski
Cricket Australia Women's Cup:	Samantha Bates, Georgia Elwiss, Clare Crewdson, Wui-Kwan Wong
U/ 19 ACT Representatives (Men):	Dean Solway, Aaron Ayre, Sam Taylor
U/ 18 ACT Representatives (Women):	Pip Taylor, Grace Cashmere, Paige Mattewson, Victoria King
U/ 17 ACT Representatives (Men):	Dean Solway, Tim Coggan, Lakshmn Shivakkumar, Luke Ryan, Mark Solway
U/ 15 ACT Representatives (Men):	Guy Gillespie, Justin Brownbill
U/ 15 ACT Representatives (Women):	Victoria King, Rachel Frkic
Riverina (NSW Women's Country Championships):	Rachel Frkic, Kirsten Frkic Renae Black, Caitlin Baker and Georgie Leahey-Butler
High Performance Squad of the Year:	Victoria King, Dean Solway, Pip Taylor
DB Robin Medal:	Mark Higgs
CACT Grade Team Captain:	Mark Higgs
CACT Grade Team of the Year:	Mark Higgs, Aaron Ayre
1st Grade Batting Aggregate:	Aaron Ayre
2nd Grade Batting Award:	Peter Coleborne
2nd Grade Bowling Award:	Darren Southwell
5th Grade Batting Award:	Adrian Brunker
Greg Irvine Medal (Player of the Grand Final):	Aaron Ayre

Konica Minolta Batting Strike Rate:	Simon Mackie
Konica Minolta Player of the Series:	Mark Higgs
Lorne Lees Medal (2nd Grade Player of the Year):	Peter Coleborne
Glenda Hall Best New Players:	Nicole Stevenson
Most Promising Junior Player Award:	Alex Page
CACT Lord Taverner's Volunteers Award:	Stephen Cross, Rohan Ditton

## **DB Robin Presentation Night**



(back row) Chris Doyle, Stephen Cross, Rohan Ditton, Simon Mackie, Darren Southwell (front row) Mark Higgs, Ian McNamee, Aaron Ayre, Peter Coleborne

## **Scorecards**

## 1st Grade Final

Queanbeyan vs Tuggeranong Venue: Manuka

Dates: 25, 26 & 27 March 2011

**Toss: Tuggeranong** 

#### 1st Innings: Tuggeranong

Batsman	<b>How Out</b>	Runs
S Lang	c Hansen b Taylor	27
S Thornton	b Hansen	4
V Bennett	run out (Taylor)	4
C Russo	c Ayre b Southwell	26
M Wescombe	c Spaseski b Southwell	13
M Barrington-Smith	not out	41
A Ritchard	c Ayre b Higgs	9
M Floros	c Spaseski b Higgs	0
S Osborne	b Dean	16
S Devoy	run out (Hansen)	10
G Miller	lbw Taylor	0
Sundries (3b, 9lb, 1w.	, 1nb)	14
Total (64.5 overs)		164
<b>FOW:</b> 20, 32, 40, 82,	83, 98, 104, 142, 164, 16	54

#### **Bowling**

D Southwell 18-7-2-34, L Hansen 8-3-1-16, S Taylor 9.5-1-2-31, M Higgs 21-6-2-41, V Dukoski 3-0-0-10, B Dean 5-1-1-20

1st Innings:	Queanbeyan	
Batsman	<b>How Out</b>	Runs
A Ayre	c Floros b Wescombe	154
B Dean	c Osborne b Miller	2
D Solway	c Lang b Miller	0
M Higgs	c Ritchard b Devoy	45
M Spaseski	c & b Devoy	33
P Coleborne	b Ritchard	20
V Dukoski	run out (Ritchard)	22
S Mackie	c Osborne b Wescombe	5
S Taylor	b Ritchard	15
D Southwell	c Bennett b Wescombe	3
L Hansen	not out	2
Sundries (0b, 7lb, 0w	, 1nb)	8
Total (81.2 overs)		309
<b>FOW:</b> 14, 20, 98, 192	, 261, 273, 278, 299, 307	, 309

#### **Bowling**

A Ritchard 25-6-2-86, G Miller 14-3-2-60, S Devoy 15-3-2-60, M Wescombe 16.2-3-3-54, M Floros 10-3-0-42

2nd Innings:	Tuggeranong	
Batsman	<b>How Out</b>	Runs
M Floros	c Mackie b Higgs	13
S Thornton	c & b Southwell	2
S Lang	c Hansen b Higgs	16
V Bennett	b Dean	20
M Wescombe	b Southwell	46
M Barrington-Smith	lbw Dean	6
A Ritchard	lbw Dean	26
C Russo	c Hansen b Southwell	4
S Osborne	not out	16
S Devoy	c Ayre b Southwell	0
G Miller	c Solway b Southwell	10
Sundries (7b, 10lb, 1w, 0nb) 18		
Total (43.1 overs)		177
<b>FOW:</b> 21, 23, 57, 78, 106, 144, 148, 156, 157, 177		

#### **Bowling**

D Southwell 14.1-2-5-56, L Hansen 2-0-0-5, M Higgs 13-2-2-51, B Dean 14-2-3-48

MATCH RESULT: Queanbeyan won 1st Innings

**Greg Irvine Medal (Player of the Match):** Aaron Ayre

## **John Gallop Cup Final**

Queanbeyan vs Tuggeranong
Venue: Stirling
Date: 27 February 2011
Toss: Tuggeranong

#### **Tuggeranong**

Batsman	<b>How Out</b>	Runs
J Haywood	b Southwell	16
S Lang	lbw Southwell	2
V Bennett	b Hansen	4
M Wescombe	c Ayre b Hansen	14
C Russo	b Dukoski	19
M Floros	c Solway b Taylor	6
M Barrington-Smith	c Taylor b Higgs	1
S Thornton	lbw Dean	17
A Ritchard	lbw Higgs	20
S Devoy	c Solway b Higgs	14
S Osborne	not out	0
<b>Sundries</b> (1b, 0lb, 6w, 0nb)		7
Total (39.4 overs)		120
EOTT 00 05 05 46	100 100	

**FOW:** 22, 25, 37, 46, 55, 62, 85, 85, 120, 120

#### **Bowling**

D Southwell 7-1-2-27, L Hansen 10-0-2-29, M Higgs 8.4-0-3-23, S Taylor 2-0-1-7, B Dean 8-0-1-21, V Dukoski 4-0-1-12

1st Innings:	Queanbeyan	
Batsman	<b>How Out</b>	Runs
V Dukoski	lbw Kellar	29
B Dean	c Kellar b Ritchard	16
A Ayre	c Thornton b Devoy	5
M Higgs	not out	52
M Spaseski	not out	18
D Solway	dnb	
S Mackie	dnb	
S Taylor	dnb	
T Coggan	dnb	
J Murdoch	dnb	
D Southwell	dnb	
Sundries (0b, 0lb, 3v	w, 1nb)	4
Total (25.4 overs)	3 wkts for	124
<b>FOW:</b> 35, 41, 66		

#### **Bowling**

A Ritchard 8.4-1-1-39, E Kellar 9-2-1-35, S Devoy 5-0-1-25, V Bennett 2-0-0-20, M Wescombe 1-0-0-5

MATCH RESULT: Queanbeyan won by 7 wickets

Player of the Match: Mark Higgs

## 5th Grade - Final

Queanbeyan vs Western Districts UC Venue: Town Park Date: 26 March 2011 Toss: West's

W	est	's
---	-----	----

VV CDC D		
Batsman	How Out	Runs
A Miller	c Jensen b S Martin	7
S Luby	c & b Cameron	13
C Ravinuthala	c Jensen b McGlashan	7
M Broers	b Cameron	0
J Clark	b Fern	4
K Brown	c Brunker b McGlashan	0
K Lancaster	run out (S Martin)	37
S Wightman	c Cameron b McGlashar	n 0
T Chugg	b J Martin	13
L Grzywacz	lbw Jensen	1
D Kidd	not out	3
Sundries (4b, 4lb, 9w,	, <b>0nb</b> )	<b>17</b>
Total (45 overs)		102
EOW. 22 27 27 44	11 15 15 96 97 100	

**FOW:** 23, 27, 27, 44, 44, 45, 45, 86, 87, 102

#### **Bowling**

T Cameron 9-3-2-12, S Martin 9-1-1-18, R McGlashan 9-3-3-14, J Fern 9-3-1-21, P Jensen 5-0-1-14, J Martin 4-0-1-15

#### Queanbeyan

Batsman	How Out	Runs
D Gough	lbw Marshall	2
A Thorn	c Wightman b Broers	0
A Brunker	c Miller b Broers	11
S Martin	lbw Kidd	16
T Cameron	c Miller b Luby	13
P Jensen	lbw Grzywacz	19
J Martin	c Marshall b Grzywacz	6
J Fern	not out	15
A Fahey	not out	5
C Doyle	dnb	
R McGlashan	dnb	
<b>Sundries (2b, 2lb, 11w, 1nb)</b>		16
Total (38.5 overs)	7 wkts for	103
<b>FOW:</b> 3, 15, 24, 43, 7	76, 78, 91	

#### **Bowling**

E Marshall 6.5-0-1-25, M Broers, 9-1-2-24, S Luby 6-2-1-8, D Kidd 9-4-1-11, L Grzywacz 7-1-2-29, C Ravinuthala 1-0-0-2

MATCH RESULT: Queanbeyan won by 3 wickets

**Player of the Match:** Troy Cameron

### Twenty/20-Division 2 Final

Queanbeyan vs Ginninderra Venue: Manuka Oval Date: 30/01/2011 Toss: Ginninderra

#### Ginninderra

Batsman	<b>How Out</b>	Runs (B/F)
M Wojtazsak	b Shivakkumar	30 (36)
B Roweth	c Southwell b Alexande	er 8 (14)
C Nicoladis	not out	23 (33)
T Clunes	b Shivakkumar	8 (7)
N Owen	b Murdoch	29 (22)
R Healy	not out	12 (9)
C Jansen	dnb	
P Cox	dnb	
A Thumma	dnb	
C Wenke	dnb	
R Carle	dnb	
Sundries (6b, 5lb, 3w	, <b>0nb</b> )	14
Total (20 overs)	4 wkts for	124
<b>FOW:</b> 35 (Roweth), 5	3 (Wojtazsak), 63 (Clun	es), 102 (Owen)

#### **Bowling**

D Southwell 4-0-0-29, S Cameron 4-0-0-17, G Alexander 4-0-1-8, L Shivakkumar 4-0-2-26, J Murdoch 3-0-1-32, D Monck 1-0-0-1

#### Queanbeyan

Batsman	<b>How Out</b>	Runs (B/F)
P Coleborne (c)	not out	50 (53)
MP Frost	bwd O'Connor	52 (40)
D Corcoran	not out	7 (9)
K Martyn	dnb	
J Murdoch	dnb	
L Shivakkumar	dnb	
G Alexander	dnb	
M Harding	dnb	
D Monck	dnb	
P Moore (w)	dnb	
D Southwell	dnb	
Sundries (0b, 4b, 12w, 0nb)		16
Total (16.5 overs) 1 wkts for		125
<b>FOW:</b> 100 (Frost)		

#### **Bowling**

A Thumma 2-0-0-20, R Carle 3-0-0-19, C Nicoladis 4-0-0-19, P Cox 2-0-0-27, A O'Connor 3-0-1-20, N Owen 2.5-0-0-16

Match Result: Queanbeyan won by 9 wickets

Player of the Match: Marty Frost

## First Grade Report

## 2010/11 Premiers & John Gallop Cup Champions



2010/11 Random Computing 1st Grade Premiers

(back row) Dean Southwell, Simon Mackie, Sam Taylor, Jono Dean (injured) (middle row) Vele Dukoski, Dean Solway, Aaron Ayre, Blake Dean (front row) Peter Coleborne Lea Hansen, Mark Higgs (capt), Michael Spaseski, Mark Solway (12<sup>th</sup>)

This year the club welcomed a number of new faces in Sam Taylor, Blake Dean and Aaron Ayre. These guys, as well as Simon Mackie and Tim Coggan came in to fill the vacancies left by the departure of Jordie (Brisbane), Sandy (Sydney), Leroy (sort of retiring), Heads being unavailable for most of the season and of course Luke Bush's tragic passing.

So with nearly half the team being replaced, there were a few thoughts about how soon the boys would gel as a team. To add to this Jono Dean suffered a season ending injury in early February (was hit by a cyclist while out walking). Well, results speak for themselves with two premierships and runner up in a third. Adding to this the club nearly scored back to back club championships.

The common theme as you read through the reports will be about how much cricket was lost due to the weather. It was certainly a pretty wet summer all up. However, this did not stop the team from playing bright, attacking cricket pretty much all through the summer.

I think that the classic example of this was the semi final against North's. Despite being bowled out for 242 (with Sam Miller bagging 7 for) Aaron 'Nugget' Ayre battled through at the top of the order to score his maiden ton for the club. Nugget was ably backed up by Vele who put together a very patient 49 no. With Mark Higgs at the helm the guys attacked from the very first ball and bowled North's out for 151 with Dean Southwell bagging 4 wickets.

To their credit North's were not going to give up easily and quite rightly made us bat for a second time. On a rapidly deteriorating Stirling wicket we could only muster 153 in the second innings, giving us a lead of 244 runs. Higgsy could have sat back, set defensive fields and let the game dwindle to a draw, but he decided that the old adage of attack being the best form of defence, he did just that. The end result was that we bowled them out for 149 giving us an outright victory by 95 runs.

Besides loosing Jono and the wettest summer for many years, the only real downside to the season was the humbling by Tuggeranong in the Konica Cup (now a T/20 competition) final. Whilst they were the better team on the day, we certainly had no luck throughout the match. This is one form of the game we need to work on.

Suffice to say we extracted a great deal of revenge in the two premiership deciders to come.

#### John Gallop Cup Champions

(back row) Jono Dean (injured), Aaron Ayre, Tim Coggan, Blake Dean, Dean Southwell, Dean Solway (front row) Jack Murdoch, Simon Mackie, Sam Taylor, Michael Spaseski, Vele Dukoski, Mark Higgs, Lea Hansen

Firstly we thrashed them in the John Gallop Cup (50 over competition). Tuggies who were very confident after giving us a touch up in the Konica (maybe a touch over cocky) won the toss and batted. In what was a very poor batting display, we bowled them out for 120 in just under 40 overs, with Higgsy (3-23), George (2-27) and Leroy (2-29) doing the damage. Even with the loss of early wickets (3-66), Higgsy (52 no) combined with Spags (18 no) to bring us home in just over 25 overs.



Finally the match we were looking forward to, taking on Minor Premiers Tuggeranong in the decider of the Random Computing Shield/Douglas Cup. Tuggies won the toss and batted first on a flat Manuka deck. Again their downfall was the lack of disciplined shown by their batsman and we bowled them out for 164 off 66 overs.

All bowlers bowled well and the spoils were shared around. Backing this up was some great fielding which culminated in a couple of good run outs.

Our run chase got off to a shaky start with the loss of 2 early wickets. However, at the top of the order, Nugget was relishing his role and at times showed absolute disdain for the bowling. By stumps on Day 1 we had a lead of about 40 runs with 7 wickets in hand. On the start of Day 2, Nugget continued where he left off and it wasn't long before he had scored his second ton in consecutive matches. Nugget finished up with 154 and we had put together a total of 309.

Tuggies batted a 2nd time, fairing a little better in scoring 177, with George doing the bulk of the damage with 5/56, ably assisted by Blake (3/48) giving them a slight lead of 32 runs. However Ozzie (Tuggies skipper) knew it was a forlorn hope and conceded the match just before stumps.

Thanks to Pete Coleborne for making himself available for the final. Pete was disappointed that his 2nd graders missed out this season, but his presence and experience was invaluable during the match.

For his batting, Aaron Ayre was deservedly awarded the Greg Irvine Medal for being Player of the Match.



Mark Higgs receiving the Premiership trophies from Ian McNamee

Aaron Ayre receiving the Greg Irvine medal from Jed Johnson of Random Computing.



Congratulations go to all players who achieved representative honours this season.

Congratulations also to Aaron Ayre for equalling the wicket keeping dismissal record and to Blake Dean breaking the fielding record for 1st grade.

Whilst the tables following this report contain the black and white statistics, it doesn't fully represent the contributions that players made during the season. Every player that walked onto the field for a first grade match this season gave their all and everyone can be proud of their efforts.

A vote of thanks must go to Liam Baker, who took on the role of 1st grade scorer this season. Also thanks to Dave Ayre who helped organise lunches for most of our games.

One last thing congratulations to Jono and Kim, who got married in Fiji in June. On behalf of your team mates and the club, we wish you all the very best.

#### The future.

This year a number of players came close to scoring their first major milestone for the club (either a 'ton' or a '5 for') such as Dean Solway, Blake Dean, Sammy Taylor, Vele Dukoski and Michael Spaseski. Given their dedication to the game, I am sure that these milestones will be not long off.

#### **BATTING AVERAGES**

## **Two-day Competition**

(minimum 100 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Aaron Ayre	8	9	0	513	154	57.00
Mark Higgs	8	9	0	295	78	32.78
Dean Solway	8	9	2	249	84	35.57
Michael Spaseski	8	8	0	246	67	30.75
Blake Dean	8	9	0	222	81	24.67
Vele Dukoski	8	9	2	143	49*	20.43
Jonathon Dean	4	4	0	121	62	30.25

#### **One-day Competitions**

(John Gallop & SCG Cup)

#### (minimum 100 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Aaron Ayre	8	6	0	314	90	52.33
Mark Higgs	8	5	1	254	112	63.50
Jonathon Dean	7	5	1	204	107*	51.00
Michael Spaseski	6	3	2	138	64*	138.00

#### Konica Cup Twenty/20 Competition

(minimum 50 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave	S/R
Mark Higgs	6	6	0	209	77	34.83	160.77
Aaron Ayre	6	6	1	176	45*	35.20	107.32
Simon Mackie	7	6	1	122	54*	24.40	206.78
Michael Spaseski	7	7	1	100	34*	16.67	94.34
Jonathon Dean	7	7	0	93	37	13.29	100.00
Blake S Dean	7	7	0	92	29	13.14	108.24
Vele Dukoski	7	6	2	62	18	15.50	106.90

#### **BOWLING AVERAGES**

#### **Two-day Competition**

(minimum 10 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Mark Higgs	203.1	56	28	470	16.79	5/31
Dean Southwell	133.1	34	20	347	17.35	5/56
Blake Dean	106.4	22	14	318	22.71	3/48
Sam Taylor	78.5	12	13	242	18.62	4/46
Vele Dukoski	58.5	13	10	179	17.90	3/32

# One-day Competitions (John Gallop & SCG Cup)

#### (minimum 7 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Dean Southwell	36.3	3	10	143	14.30	4/52
Blake Dean	42	1	9	149	16.56	3/10
Sam Taylor	42.3	4	8	200	25.00	3/38

#### **Konica Cup Competition**

(minimum 5 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R
Mark Higgs	21	0	13	104	8.00	4/17	9.69	4.95
Dean Southwell	20	2	9	89	9.89	3/8	13.33	4.45
Blake Dean	20	0	9	97	10.78	3/12	13.33	4.85
Vele Dukoski	22	0	7	92	13.14	3/22	18.86	4.18

# **Second Grade Report**

Division 2- Twenty/20 Winners



Back row: Jack Murdoch, Darren Southwell, Scott Cameron, Lakshmn Shivakkumar,
Graeme Alexander, Phil Moore, Keifer Martyn
Front row: Matt Harding, David Monck, Dave Corcoran, Peter Coleborne (c),
Marty Frost

2010/11 was a season of mixed results for QDCC Second Grade. We won one premiership and were eliminated in semi finals in the One and Two Day competitions.

We entered the season with high expectations due to our premiership success in the previous season. Before the commencement of the season, we lost a number of key players due to retirement (Simon Fahey, Dean Mansfield and Marc Heading) and work commitments (Raglan Maddox, Matt Crowe and Ben Stensrud). We were still hopeful of premierships this season as we retained key members (Pete Coleborne, Keifer Martyn, Dave Corcoran and Darren Southwell) from our 2010 premiership team. We combined this core group of players with talented youngsters in Pat Toole, Jack Murdoch, Lakshmn Shivakkumar, Phil Moore and Luke Ryan to form the basis of our 2010/11 team.

During the season we quickly lost talented young players to First Grade at the slightest glimpse of form in Second Grade. These players left holes in our team that were often hard to replace which meant our line up changed as we tried to adequately replace these players. We called upon club stalwarts Marty Frost and Graham Alexander to fulfil major roles in our team at stages along with David Monck and Balinder Singh-Khillan.

Our season highlight was winning the Division 2 T20 competition. We went through the tournament undefeated and comprehensively defeated Ginninderra in the final at Manuka Oval. This match was dominated by Marty Frost who scored 52 in extremely quick time.

Pete Coleborne was without doubt the star of Second Grade in the ACTCA. Pete scored 854 runs (a QDCC Second Grade record) at 65. Our batting revolved around Pete and the hardest decision was where to bat Pete to maximise his value to the team. The bowling was also dominated by one individual, Darren Southwell. Darren claimed 51 wickets during the season and bowled an incredible 289 overs.

The season was a success in a number of ways. Firstly, we continued to develop our talented young players at a higher level of cricket. Secondly, we won the inaugural Division 2 T20 Premiership. It was disappointing however to not win multiple premierships as First Grade did. This was due to our inconsistent performance as a team and our over reliance on key members of our team.

2011/12 promises to be a successful season for Second Grade if we:

- can retain the core group of players we had this year
- can coax some 2010 Premiership stars out of retirement
- improve our consistency and professionalism
- continue to develop our talented teenagers to be contributing members of the team

We must thank the committee and our volunteers who enabled us to represent QDCC in another hugely successful season for our club.

Dave Corcoran (on behalf of Pete Coleborne)



Our sub-continent connection - Lakshmn, Keifer and Balinder

#### **Two-day Competition**

(minimum 100 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Peter Coleborne	8	9	2	554	101*	79.14
Patrick Toole	7	7	1	196	72*	32.67
Dave Corcoran	8	8	1	168	75	24.00
Jack Murdoch	7	7	1	166	51*	27.67
Simon Mackie	2	3	1	107	42	53.50
Phil Moore	7	6	5	104	34	104.00

#### **One-day Competition**

(minimum 75 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Balinder Singh Khillan	4	4	1	174	78*	58.00
Peter Coleborne	4	4	1	162	100*	54.00

#### **Twenty/20 Competition**

(minimum 50 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave	S/R
Peter Coleborne	5	4	1	138	51	46.00	106.2
Marty Frost	5	4	0	94	52	23.50	127.0
Jack Murdoch	4	3	2	74	37*	74.00	108.8
Dave Corcoran	5	4	1	55	40	18.33	112.2

#### **BOWLING AVERAGES**

#### **Two-day Competition**

(minimum 10 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Darren Southwell	231	54	37	511	13.81	6/51
Lakshmn Shivakkumar	63.4	15	15	129	8.60	4/3
Luke Ryan	56	15	10	167	16.70	4/83

#### **One-day Competition**

(minimum 5 wickets)

Name	Overs	Maidens	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Darren Southwell	39	7	9	112	12.44	3/26
Balinder Singh Khillan	22.1	2	7	91	13.00	3/10
Luke Ryan	23	1	5	85	17.00	3/21

#### **Twenty/20 Competition**

(minimum 5 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R
Lakshmn Shivakkumar	16	0	9	96	10.67	3/9	10.67	6.00
Graeme Alexander	12	0	5	33	6.60	2/9	14.40	2.75
David Monck	8.3	0	5	56	11.20	4/25	10.20	6.59
Marty Frost	10	0	5	66	13.20	2/6	12.00	6.60
Darren Southwell	19	0	5	87	17.40	3/13	22.80	4.58

# **Third Grade Report**

Unfortunately, the 2010-11 season will be remembered for rain and washouts. An unprecedented number of our games were abandoned with Friday afternoon rain the norm throughout the summer.

Despite the rain and missing the semi-finals in the 2 day competition, I believe the season was a success. The number of junior players in 3rd grade was certainly a positive and it is great to see them improve during the year. A solid core of 6 or 7 x 15 and 16 year olds took the field each week for the 3rds which augurs well for the future of our Club. Michael Medved, Jeremy MacDonald, Mark Solway, Josh Gregory, Guy Gillespie, Omair Ali and Stephen Harris all showed positive signs that they will develop into strong Queanbeyan cricketers in the future.

It is important to understand that the progression up the grades for these lads won't just happen... it will take hard work and practice to improve their skills and then the need to put the "runs on the board" on a Saturday afternoon.

The highlight of the season was making the 1 day final against Canberra North where we were soundly defeated after being rolled cheaply. The victory over Eastlake in the semi-final chasing down close to 200 was an excellent performance from our group. Guy Gillespie (1/28) and Mark Solway (4/25) were the standouts with the ball whilst Michael Frost anchored the innings with an excellent 91 runs.

Our 3rd grade team were extremely fortunate to have the services of past first grade players in Michael Frost and Simon Mann playing regularly in the team. Their experience and support of the youngsters both on game days and at training is invaluable and their contributions are greatly appreciated. Excellent contributions were also made by Graeme Alexander, Donald Shivakkumar and Guy Walpole during the season. Guy in particular played an excellent one day innings against ANU which showed the talent that he possesses.

In summary, the blend of old and young players in the lower grades is a formula that has now worked well for over 5 years at the Club and is one that needs to be maintained in the future if possible. All in all a very enjoyable and successful season was had by all.

Thank you to Stephen Cross for carrying out successfully the role of Chairman of Selectors. We always fielded a full team which can sometimes be a challenge throughout the year.

Thank you also to the parents who helped out on match day and in particular Alan Macdonald for assisting with the umpiring duties, Sophie for her help with scoring and Derren & Ratsny for being there to help out.

Finally a huge thank you to our curator, Greg Dawes, for the work he put into the Freebody Oval wickets. It is great to play on decent strips and certainly helps the development of our younger players to learn and improve their skills.

Thank you for once again to everyone that played 3rd grade for your support throughout the season.

Peter Solway

#### **Two-day Competition**

(minimum 75 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Michael Frost	5	4	1	181	69*	60.33
Michael Medved	5	5	1	88	32*	22.00

#### **One-day Competition**

(minimum 50 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Peter Solway	7	6	2	236	81	59.00
Michael Frost	7	7	0	136	91	19.43
Stephen Frost	5	5	1	118	52	29.50
Guy Walpole	7	7	1	101	62	16.83
Joshua Gregory	6	4	0	78	36	19.50
Simon Mann	2	2	0	51	31	25.50
Graeme Alexander	6	4	0	50	27	12.50

#### **BOWLING AVERAGES**

#### **Two-day Competition**

(minimum 7 wickets)

Name	Overs	Maidens	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Mark Solway	81	17	11	150	13.64	3/21
Lea Hansen	26	13	8	28	3.50	6/14

# One-day Competitions (minimum 5 wickets)

Name	Overs	Maidens	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Stephen Frost	33.4	9	9	69	7.67	3/16
Mark Solway	40	3	9	120	13.33	4/25
Jeremy Macdonald	39.3	6	7	138	19.71	4/22

# **Fourth Grade Report**

2010-2011 Two-day Comp Runner's Up



Back row: Troy Drayton, Greg Dawes, Colin Crouch, David Monck, Simon Johnson, Peter Newham, Matt Donnelly

Front row: Stephen Cross, Alex Page, Matt Harding, Rohan Ditton(c), Justin Brownbill

Exciting though at times frustrating is the best way to describe season 2010/11. Exiting in the way we held on in a few tight games and the emergence of some more talented juniors, frustrating due to the wet weather and not taking home any silverware. Once again I enjoyed captaining the side and as always would like to express thanks to the older blokes for their help throughout the season, in particular Stephen Cross and Greg Dawes. We always play positive and aggressive cricket which at times proved our downfall. However I believe it is vital for the younger guys' development into senior cricketers.

Our semi final of the 1 day comp vs. ANU was washed out, though we were to extract sweet revenge in the 2 day semi a few weeks later. After winning the toss at Chisholm with showers about we were looking very shaky at 4/27. Enter Dawesy and Moncky, a partnership of 122 over three hours steadying the ship and filling the boys with confidence. Some big hitting from Doyley and Troy got our total to 221. We had to work hard for the first few ANU wickets, but some great bowling from Troy, Crouchy and Nooky saw the noodle eaters bowled out for 165, the highlight being the last wicket to fall with Doyley taking one of the best outfield catches you'll ever see – I never doubted him for a second.... The mood was soon soured when we were sent back in but we had the last laugh knowing we lived to fight another day.

We were full of confidence going into the Grand Final vs North's at Kingston, having won the past two deciders there. I chose to bat on the flattest deck we've seen all season, with a minimum target of 300 in mind. We fell 20 runs short of that, with the first 8 batsmen getting into double figures but no one going on to get big runs.

We needed to bowl them out so we were aggressive from the first over, but some loose bowling in the first session saw North's half way to the target at Lunch on day 2. To our bowlers credit they fought back hard and at 8/248 we were a big chance. However at tea they needed 20 odd to win and we just couldn't take the last 2 wickets. Losing a grand final is tough but we can be proud of the way we fought until the last ball.

I'd like to thank a few players for their efforts this year. Troy Drayton was called upon from 5<sup>th</sup> grade after a few injuries and did a tremendous job opening the bowling, unfortunately though he missed out on the premiership in 5's. Chris Doyle was brought up from 5<sup>th</sup> grade for the semi final, again due to injuries. He is a genuine clubman, always putting the club first before personal achievements. It was also great to see a few juniors coming through, with Alex Page, Matt Donnelly and Justin Brownbill showing improvement throughout the season.

To Ian McNamee, Peter Solway, Gordon Elliott and Ronnie Bates and the rest of the committee – thank you for your efforts in ensuring the club survived off the field. Also, thanks to all those volunteers who assisted during the season. Without you guys we would not have a game each week.

#### Rohan Ditton



Moncky lets one rip, as Matt Donnelly looks on

# Two-day & One-day Competitions (minimum 100 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S.	Ave
Rohan Ditton	12	13	0	421	106	32.38
Stephen Cross	11	12	1	199	57*	18.09
Balinder Khillan Singh	3	3	2	144	88*	144.00
Greg Dawes	5	5	1	129	60	32.25
Simon Johnson	7	10	2	126	30	15.75
Andrew Beattie	2	3	0	117	106	39.00
Justin Brownbill	6	7	0	103	40	14.71

#### **BOWLING AVERAGES**

# Two-day & One-day Competitions (minimum 7 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Peter Newham	73.1	17	15	185	12.33	4/26
Alex Page	78	7	12	279	23.25	3/15
Troy Drayton	80.1	15	11	214	19.45	4/75
Simon Johnson	38	3	10	147	14.70	3/41
Colin Crouch	97.4	28	9	205	22.78	3/33

# Fifth Grade Report

**2010/11 Premiers** 



Back Row: Nick Darman, Daryl Gough, Andrew Fahey, Ron McGlashan Middle Row: John Fern, Aaron Thorn, Shane Martin, Matt, Jim Martin, Ron Bates, Nick Harvey Front Row: Troy Cameron, Adrian Brunker, Peter Jensen(c), Chris Doyle

As the saying goes "Winners are grinners and the rest can please themselves".

At last, a premiership for the 5<sup>th</sup> graders, a long time coming some may say.

The season obviously went very well having gone through undefeated and being Minor Premiers. Last season we also finished on top but got bundled out in the first week of the finals so to go all the way was really pleasing.

What was more gratifying was beating West's in the final. West's have been our bogie team over the past 5 years or so and we have had some tough encounters against them. What was even better than beating them, was that it was a whole team performance. Everyone contributed in one way or another.

The difference in our side from last season was our depth. We were not relying on any one individual to carry us through with either bat or ball and in many matches we had a very even spread of contributors, as you can see by the Batting and Bowling figures.

This year the club welcomed back Adrian Brunker after a long hiatus from the sport. We also welcomed Andrew Fahey, Nick Darman and Matt Donnelly from the junior ranks.



Adrian Brunker and Jimmy Martin

Brunks easily settled back in and had a great year. Not only did he take out the 5th grade aggregate batting award for the team, he also took out the 5th Grade Batting Award for the Association.

Congrats also go to Jimmy Martin, who had a great year with bat and ball. Jim took out the bowling award (aggregate and average) for the team as well as batting average award. He also narrowly missed out on taking out the Association bowling award for 5th grade as well

Finally I would also like to congratulate Chris Doyle for being honoured with the John Solway 'Spirit of Cricket' Award. Chris is a true clubman and it was well deserved.

Congratulations to all our boys who played during the year and well done to 1<sup>st</sup> grade making it two in a row.

Peter Jensen

(minimum 50 runs)

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S	Ave
Adrian Brunker	14	11	2	349	107*	38.78
Peter Jensen	12	11	2	245	61	27.22
James Martin	16	10	5	222	43	44.40
Shane Martin	14	9	2	170	32*	24.29
John Fern	12	10	1	157	23	17.44
Andrew Fahey	15	11	3	132	34	16.50
Troy Cameron	12	9	3	125	52	20.83
Steven Jolliffe	6	4	0	115	47	28.75
Aaron Thorn	14	13	1	93	46	7.75
Daryl Gough	7	6	1	68	24	13.60

# **BOWLING AVERAGES**

(minimum 5 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Jim Martin	74.1	9	22	230	10.45	4/21
John Fern	85.2	17	19	205	10.79	5/32
Troy Cameron	71	14	17	202	11.88	3/21
Ron McGlashan	77.3	10	17	228	13.41	3/14
Troy Drayton	42	8	13	101	7.77	5/28
Nic Harvey	35	8	7	106	15.14	3/17
Adrian Brunker	22.2	5	6	58	9.67	4/11
Peter Jensen	30	2	5	87	17.4	2/14

# **Women's Team Reports**

#### **Premier League**

Queanbeyan currently has a young and very talented Premier League team with quite a few of our players playing some form of representative cricket. This year saw us compete in two formats; the T20 competition and a Limited 50 over game. Over the course of both competitions, we had many fantastic performances from all.

We played with fantastic team camaraderie that is second to none in the Premier League Competition and our results showed it, finishing a very close 2nd after an extremely narrow loss in the Grand Final. Our great team spirit, I believe, can't be matched by any other Premier League team and will hold us in good stead next season to hopefully go one better. In the T20 competition we came 3rd missing out on the final by 1 point.

For me, being out on the field with Queanbeyan, having fun and learning with a great bunch of people, is what cricket is all about. We are also lucky enough to have tremendous support from family and friends, with many travelling to some or all games throughout the season. Season 2010/11 saw us field 17 players in Premier League, more than any other club, and I thank everyone who filled in, some even received the call up on the morning of the match! Without your support I think some days could have ended up very long days in the field!

Our Premier League team was fortunate enough to secure an overseas player this year for the full season, Georgia Elwiss from Staffordshire England. Georgia also played with the ACT Meteors and made significant contributions to both teams. Georgia is a great character of the game and had plenty of passion, not only for Queanbeyan, but for cricket and the improvement of others as well.

Queanbeyan produced more representative players than any other club for season 2010/11

- Charlotte Anneveld ACT Meteors
- Georgia Elwiss ACT Meteors, Staffordshire
- Clare Crewdson ACT Meteors
- Wui-Kwan Wong, Sam Bates and Vanessa Picker CAW Cup
- Pip Taylor, Grace Cashmere, Paige Mathewson and Victoria King ACT U18
- Victoria King and Rachel Frkic ACT U15
- Rachel Frkic, Renae Black, Georgie Leahey-Butler, Kirsten Frkic and Caitlin Baker (Riverina) NSW Country Championships.

The club should be very proud of support of women's cricket. Our Premier League side has provided opportunities for players from as far away as Newcastle, Hillston and Albury. No other club in the competition can claim that!!

As a club, Queanbeyan had a bumper of a season and congratulations must go to the men's 1st grade side for winning the premiership. What a great result for the club and for the future. We as a team keep a close eye on club results and are thrilled to see everyone doing so well, from the juniors all the way to the top.

Thank you is a word easily and often used, yet I can't say it enough to Peter Baker. Without Peter the women's section would not function half as well as it does. Throughout the season Peter has done tireless work behind the scenes to help both the club and its players move forward, always making sure we fielded 11 players in Premier League week in-week out. The work you do does not go unnoticed.



Whipping one through square leg – Charlotte Anneveld (ACT Meteors)

Of course, thanks also go to the men's club for your ongoing support even on match days where we sometimes needed help with the wicket just to get on the field! To JetSet travel and Cathy Schroder, our major sponsor, we are so grateful that you see a great club in Queanbeyan and we all hope that we do you proud. The development of our young girls and club depends on encouragement of great people and sponsors like yourself.

I hope everyone has enjoyed the season, I have loved every minute of being on the field with you all, the jokes, the bad jokes, seeing such promising young players coming through. The fun and passion that is shown by all just makes me excited for next season to come along and show everyone what a great team we are.

Charlotte Anneveld Premier League and Women's Club Captain

#### **Glenda Hall Report**

During the 2010/11 season we had a number of players represent Queanbeyan in the Glenda Hall competition. Looking over the list there was a mix of returning players and many new faces trying to make a name for themself.

Unfortunately, there were a number of games washed out this season despite the drought. In all there were so many positives to come out of the season in the field we were solid, week in week out and our bowling was steady throughout the season with many fine performances and the batting continues improve. Nicole Stevenson, who came from Canowindra to play, was outstanding with her bowling and I was so pleased that some of our younger players like Ashleigh McClelland developed her batting as the season progressed.

In large part, Glenda Hall is a competition designed to groom young players for Lynn O'Meara Premier League and on this score the season was a tremendous success.

I enjoyed my first season as skipper of the side and would like to thank the following people for their guidance, assistance and effort this summer: Peter Baker and Maria Picker for scoring and all the parents and friends who provided the vocal support on the sidelines.

Women's cricket at QDCC is at the start of something very special. I encourage all women cricketers to stay with us as the rewards will come with effort and dedication. The players we have at the Club have the ability to win a premiership in the near future and I look forward to the seasons ahead.

Georgina Leahey-Butler Glenda Hall Captain

# Premier League (Lynne O'Meara Cup)

(minimum 50 runs)\*

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S	Ave	S/R
Charlotte Anneveld	7	6	1	198	60*	39.60	137.50
Clare Crewdson	7	5	0	109	34	21.80	125.29
Georgia Elwiss	6	6	1	107	41	21.40	84.25
Pip Taylor	7	5	0	100	41	20.00	67.11
Wui-Kwan Wong	6	5	0	63	37	12.60	61.17

#### Glenda Hall

(minimum 25 runs)\*

Name	Mtchs	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S	Ave	S/R
Pip Taylor	3	3	1	65	30	32.50	112.07
Kirsten Frkic	5	5	1	49	25	12.25	53.26
Vanessa Picker	5	5	1	42	30	10.50	85.71
Georgie Leahey-Butler	7	7	1	39	12	6.50	52.70
Victoria King	2	2	1	39	31	39.00	68.42
Morgan Claridge	7	7	2	25	10	5.00	43.10

#### **BOWLING AVERAGES**

# **Premier League**

#### (Lynne O'Meara Cup)

(minimum 5 wickets)\*

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R
Charlotte Anneveld	32.3	2	10	83	8.30	3/8	19.50	2.55
Clare Crewdson	19	0	5	105	21.00	2/12	22.80	5.53
Georgia Elwiss	25.5	2	5	141	28.20	2/58	31.00	5.46

#### Glenda Hall

(minimum 2 wickets)\*

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R
Kirsten Frkic	17	0	8	87	10.88	3/11	12.75	5.12
Morgan Claridge	35	2	6	146	24.33	2/13	35.00	4.17
Jodi Knight	7	0	3	32	10.67	2/13	14.00	4.57
Renae Black	14.2	0	3	73	24.33	2/12	28.67	5.14
Vanessa Picker	18	0	2	63	31.50	2/7	54.00	3.50
Rachel Frkic	15	0	2	84	42.00	2/23	45.00	5.60

# **Club Records**

# **Club Championships**

1936-1937

1957-1958

1958-1959

1959-1960

1989-1990

1991-1992

2009-2010

# 1st Grade

## **Premierships**

1927-1928

1928-1929

1935-1936

1939-1940

1957-1958

1980-1981

1982-1983

1985-1986

1986-1987

1987-1988

1990-1991

1991-1992

2000 2010

2009-2010

2010-2011

#### **One-Day Competition**

1986-1987

1987-1988

1997-1998

2010-2011 (John Gallop Cup)

#### **Konica Cup Competition**

2001-2002

2009-2010

# **Twenty20 Competition**

2008-2009

2009-2010

### **Sunday League**

1989-1990

1992-1993

1993-1994

## **Toohey's Twilight Competition**

1981-1982 1983-1984 1987-1988 1988-1989 1989-1990 1991-1992 1993-1994 1995-1996 1996-1997

# **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	71.44	P. Solway	1989-90
Most Runs in a Season	1138	J. Swift	1999-00
Highest Individual Score:	339	P. Solway vs ANU	1989-90
Highest Team Score:	728	vs Ginninderra	1985-86
Lowest Team Score:	41	vs Ginninderra	1998-99
Best Bowling Average:	7.81	R. Flockton	1974-75
Most Wickets in a Season	55	N. Bulger	1980-81
<b>Best Bowling Performance</b>	9/39	9/39 F. Hansby vs Sth Woden 1983	
Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper):	35	G. Wall	1980-81
		M. Carruthers	1983-84
		M. O'Rourke	1999-00
		A. Ayre	2010-11
Most Catches (Fielder):	19	B. Dean	2010-11

## **Best Partnerships**

1 <sup>st</sup> Wicket: 200	M Frost (107) & S Frost (72)	VS	Weston Creek	1991-92
2 <sup>nd</sup> Wicket: 228	M Frost (164) & P Solway (119)	VS	Ginninderra	1985-86
3 <sup>rd</sup> Wicket: 346	P Solway (211) & R Regent (123)	VS	Weston Creek	1990-91
4 <sup>th</sup> Wicket: 166	J Bull 94 & N Bulger (75)	VS	East's	1986-87
5 <sup>th</sup> Wicket: 213	R Regent (123) & J Robson (120)	VS	South's	1990-91
6 <sup>th</sup> Wicket: 173	R Farquharson (73) & C Henry (80)	VS	City	1984-85
7 <sup>th</sup> Wicket: 93	N Bulger (47) & C Ball (32)	VS	Tuggeranong	1989-90
8 <sup>th</sup> Wicket: 103	M Carruthers (73) & T Wynd (89)	VS	East's	1986-87
9 <sup>th</sup> Wicket: 186	M Thornton (97) & M Carruthers (112)	VS	Ginninderra	1985-86
10 <sup>th</sup> Wicket: 73	S Fahey (110 no) & G Hammond (8)	VS	ANU	2006-07

#### **Quickest Century Partnership**

2<sup>nd</sup> Wicket 46 Minutes Peter Solway & Stephen Frost 1989-90

# **2nd Grade Premierships**

1960-1961 1976-1977 1989-1990 1992-1993 2009-2010

# **One-Day Competition**

1988-1989

## **Twenty20 Competition**

2007-2008 2010-2011

# **Individual Records**

<b>Best Batting Average:</b>	65.69	P. Coleborne	2010-2011
Most Runs In A Season:	854	P. Coleborne	2010-2011
<b>Highest Individual Score:</b>	166	G. Woods	1990-1991
Best Bowling Average:	8.43	P. Moon	1972-1973
Most Wickets in a Season:	65	P. Moon	1972-1973
<b>Best Bowling Performance:</b>	9-43	P. Moon	1972-1973

# 3rd Grade Premierships

1969-1970 1982-1983 2009-2010

# **One-Day Competition**

1985-1986 1992-1993

## **Individual Records**

<b>Best Batting Average:</b>	62.7	N. Bulger	1991-1992
Most Runs In A Season:	749	G. Hannaford	2000-2001
<b>Highest Individual Score:</b>	206	R. Blewitt	1966-1967
Best Bowling Average:	5.41	A. Hodgson	1966-1967
Most Wickets in a Season:	65	W. Rogers	1973-1974
Best Bowling Performance:	8-18	S. Bannerman	1988-1989

# 4th Grade Premierships

1989-1990 2006-2007 2008-2009

## **One-Day Competition**

1988-1989 2009-2010

# **Individual Records**

<b>Best Batting Average:</b>	106.25	P. Solway	2009-2010
Most Runs In A Season:	630	P. Solway	2006-2007
<b>Highest Individual Score:</b>	177	I. Hamill	1999-2000
Best Bowling Average:	8.17 F. Strammandinoli		1988-1989
Most Wickets in a Season:	39	R. Warner	2000-2001
<b>Best Bowling Performance:</b>	7-35	P. Newham	2008-2009

# 5th Grade Premierships

1973-1974 1996-1997 2010-2011\*

## **One-Day Premierships**

1986-1987 1993-1994 1996-1997 2000-2001 2001-2002

# **Twenty20 Competition**

2007-2008

# **Individual Records**

(Post 2005)

<b>Best Batting Average:</b>	54.8	Peter Jensen	2009-2010
Most Runs In A Season:	548	Peter Jensen	2009-2010
Highest Individual Score:	104*	Ben Graham	2006-2007
Best Bowling Average:	7.77	Troy Drayton	2010-2011
Most Wickets in a Season:	35	Ron McGlashan	2008-2009
<b>Best Bowling Performance:</b>	7/17	Peter Jensen	2006-2007

(\*2005-06 – 5th grade was restructured into one-day game competition)

# **Individual Records**

(Prior 2005)

<b>Best Batting Average:</b>	113.25	N. Bulger	1996-1997
Most Runs In A Season:	906	N. Bulger	1996-1997
<b>Highest Individual Score:</b>	204	N. Bulger	1996-1997
Best Bowling Average:	8.98	R. Saddler	1973-1974
Most Wickets in a Season:	45	V. Forbes	2000-2001
Best Bowling Performance:	9/100	H. Greenwell	1991-1992

# 6th Grade Premierships 1994-1995

# **Individual Records**

<b>Best Batting Average:</b>	103.7	N. Bulger	1994-1995
Most Runs In A Season:	726	N. Bulger	1994-1995
<b>Highest Individual Score:</b>	160	N. Bulger	1994-1995
Best Bowling Average:	10.89	R. Heading	1994-1995
Most Wickets in a Season:	28	R. Heading	1994-1995
<b>Best Bowling Performance:</b>	5-27	V. Forbes	1994-1995

# Women's Lynn O'Meara/Premier League

# **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	128.0	E Preston	2007-2008
Most Runs In A Season:	270	V Picker	2008-2009
<b>Highest Individual Score:</b>	82	E Preston	2007-2008
Best Bowling Average:	9.5	H. Jones	2002-2003
Most Wickets in a Season:	27	H. Jones	2002-2003
Best Bowling Performance:	5-0	H. Jones	2002-2003

## **Best Partnerships**

1st Wicket: 143	V Picker (62) & T Wallace (59)	vs Tuggeranong	2008/09
2nd Wicket: 110	H Jones (50*) & J Morris (55)	vs North Canberra Gungahlin	2004/05
3rd Wicket: 86	V Picker (55) & E Preston (48)	vs Eastlake	2006/07
4th Wicket: 97	E Preston (82*) & J Knight (41)	vs Tuggeranong	2007/08
5th Wicket: 50	J Morris (36) & K Mollison (6)	vs North Canberra Gungahlin	2005/06
6th Wicket: 38	V King (26*) & E Parkinson (0)	vs Great Impressions	2009/10
7th Wicket: 50	V Picker (32*) & A Baker (15)	vs North Canberra Gungahlin	2005/06
8th Wicket: 84	V Picker (22) & K Mollison (33)	vs ANU	2004/05

# **Glenda Hall**

# **Individual Records**

Best Batting Average:	26.0	Sina Leis	2009/2010
Most Runs In A Season:	80	80 Georgie Leahey-Butler 2	
<b>Highest Individual Score:</b>	39	Georgie Leahey-Butler	2009/2010
Best Bowling Average:	13.65 Kirsten Frkic		2009/2010
Most Wickets in a Season:	6	Kirsten Frkic	2009/2010
<b>Best Bowling Performance:</b>	3/7	Kirsten Frkic	2009/2010

#### **Best Partnerships**

1st Wicket: 40	G Leahey Butler (20*) & K Frkic (55)	vs North Canberra Gungahlin	2009/10
2nd Wicket: 56	J Knight (22) & G Leahey Butler (11)	vs Tuggeranong	2009/10
3rd Wicket: 43	E Parkinson (19*) & T Claridge (13)	vs ANU	2009/10
4th Wicket: 35	K Frkic (29*) & M Mayoh (15*)	vs North Canberra Gungahlin	2009/10
5th Wicket: 68	V King (21) & G Leahey Butler (39)	vs Western Districts UC	2009/10

# Appendix A – Season Statistics (Does not include Premier League or SCG Cup Matches)

		B	ATT	TING	1				
Name	Mtchs	Inns	NOs	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's	Ducks
Graeme Alexander	17	8	2	73	27	12.17	0	0	1
Omair Ali	7	2	2	7	7*	na	0	0	0
Aaron Ayre	20	21	1	1003	154	50.15	4	2	1
Caitlin Baker	4	4	1	23	7	7.67	0	0	0
Ron Bates	7	3	1	9	7*	4.50	0	0	1
Andrew Beattie	3	4	0	120	106	30.00	0	1	0
Jack Bettridge	2	2	0	10	8	5.00	0	0	0
Ian Black	5	4	3	21	8*	21.00	0	0	0
Renae Black	5	5	1	9	4	2.25	0	0	1
Alex Bowyer	2	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0
Timothy Boyd	1	1	0	36	36	36.00	0	0	0
Justin Brownbill	10	10	0	137	40	13.70	0	0	1
Adrian Brunker	15	12	2	350	107*	35.00	1	1	0
Vince Bulger	1	1	0	16	16	16.00	0	0	0
John Bull	4	4	0	4	2	1.00	0	0	2
Scott Cameron	11	1	1	0	0*	na	0	0	0
Troy Cameron	12	9	3	125	52	20.83	1	0	0
Matthew Chapman	3	3	0	8	6	2.67	0	0	1
Morgan Claridge	7	7	2	25	10	5.00	0	0	2
Tim Coggan	17	14	3	144	31	13.09	0	0	1
Peter Coleborne	22	20	5	930	101*	62.00	6	2	0
Ryan Collier	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0
Dave Corcoran	19	16	2	287	75	20.50	1	0	3
Stephen Cross	11	12	1	199	57*	18.09	1	0	2
Colin Crouch	6	1	0	10	10	10.00	0	0	0
Greg Dawes	10	8	2	170	60	28.33	1	0	0
Blake S Dean	21	21	0	374	81	17.81	1	0	0
Jonathon Dean	16	16	1	418	107*	27.87	2	1	2
Rohan Ditton	13	14	0	422	106	30.14	3	1	2
Matthew Donnelly	12	7	1	17	12	2.83	0	0	3
Christopher Doyle	15	10	1	68	21	7.56	0	0	2
Troy Drayton	10	8	1	75	21	10.71	0	0	1
Vele Dukoski	21	21	4	343	69	20.18	1	0	1
Andrew Fahey	15	11	3	132	34	16.50	0	0	1
Simon Fahey	2	3	0	32	17	10.67	0	0	0
John Fern	14	12	1	182	23	16.55	0	0	0
Kirsten Frkic	5	5	1	49	25	12.25	0	0	0
Rachel Frkic	5	5	2	12	4*	4.00	0	0	1
Marty P Frost	15	14	2	158	52	13.17	1	0	0
Michael J Frost	15	14	2	345	91	28.75	3	0	2
Stephen Frost	6	5	1	118	52	29.50	1	0	0
Guy D Gillespie	10	6	1	29	16	5.80	0	0	2

		B	ATT	ING	1				
Name	Mtchs	Inns	NOs	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's	Ducks
Daryl Gough	7	6	1	68	24	13.60	0	0	0
Joshua Gregory	11	8	0	90	36	11.25	0	0	1
Lea Hansen	8	4	1	25	15	8.33	0	0	1
Matthew Harding	12	12	1	119	46*	10.82	0	0	3
Stephen Harris	6	5	1	64	36*	16.00	0	0	1
Nicholas S Harvey	14	3	1	17	15*	8.50	0	0	1
Adam Heading	2	2	0	6	6	3.00	0	0	1
Mark Higgs	20	20	1	758	112	39.89	6	1	2
Peter Jensen	13	12	3	283	61	31.44	2	0	2
Sam Jensen	3	2	2	18	10*	na	0	0	0
Simon Johnson	10	13	2	161	30	14.64	0	0	1
Steven Jolliffe	6	4	0	115	47	28.75	0	0	0
Yashab Khan	1	1	0	23	23	23.00	0	0	0
Victoria King	2	2	1	39	31	39.00	0	0	0
Jodi Knight	2	2	0	11	7	5.50	0	0	0
Anthony Laverty	3	4	0	46	26	11.50	0	0	1
Georgina Leahey-Butler	7	7	1	39	12	6.50	0	0	0
Jeremy Macdonald	13	7	4	25	11*	8.33	0	0	1
Simon Mackie	20	18	3	370	54*	24.67	1	0	1
Simon Mann	5	3	0	85	34	28.33	0	0	0
Dean Mansfield	1	1	0	12	12	12.00	0	0	0
James Martin	16	10	5	222	43	44.40	0	0	1
Shane A Martin	14	9	2	170	32*	24.29	0	0	0
Kiefer Martyn	18	15	0	102	27	6.80	0	0	2
Ron McGlashan	14	7	1	40	30	6.67	0	0	3
Lewis McLennan	1	1	1	11	11*	na	0	0	0
Michael Medved	12	10	1	125	32*	13.89	0	0	0
David Monck	15	10	1	143	67	15.89	1	0	0
Philip Moore	16	11	7	132	34	33.00	0	0	0
Shannon Mould	3	3	2	39	23*	39.00	0	0	0
Jack Murdoch	19	16	4	323	51*	26.92	2	0	0
Peter Newham	8	10	1	83	36*	9.22	0	0	2
Alex Page	13	11	7	40	7*	10.00	0	0	1
Brad Page	1	1	1	2	2*	na	0	0	0
Vanessa Picker	5	5	1	42	30*	10.50	0	0	1
Sagar Pradhan	2	1	0	9	9	9.00	0	0	0
Luke Ryan	15	7	2	50	22	10.00	0	0	0
Luke Seal	3	2	0	32	30	16.00	0	0	0
Tom Shiner	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1
Donald Shivakkumar	8	8	1	53	14	7.57	0	0	1
Lakshmn Shivakkumar	17	12	1	131	41	11.91	0	0	2
Balinder Singh Khillan	11	11	3	353	88*	44.13	4	0	2
Dean Solway	14	12	3	280	84	31.11	3	0	1
Mark Solway	13	6	3	44	16	14.67	0	0	0
Peter Solway	17	13	3	333	81	33.30	2	0	0
Darren Southwell	17	5	3	5	3*	2.50	0	0	2

	BATTING											
Name	Mtchs	Inns	NOs	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's	Ducks			
Dean Southwell	20	14	1	64	18	4.92	0	0	4			
Michael Spaseski	19	18	3	484	67	32.27	4	0	2			
Ben Stensrud	7	8	2	100	34	16.67	0	0	1			
Philippa Taylor	3	3	1	65	30*	32.50	0	0	0			
Sam Taylor	18	12	7	113	28*	22.60	0	0	2			
Aaron Thorn	14	13	1	93	46	7.75	0	0	3			
Patrick Toole	22	18	4	300	72*	21.43	2	0	1			
Guy Walpole	13	12	2	191	62	19.10	1	0	2			

				В	OW.	LIN	G					
Name	Mtchs	Overs	Balls	Mdns	Runs	Wkts	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5 wk Inn	10 wk Mtch
Graeme Alexander	17	166	996	32	432	15	28.80	2/9	66.40	2.60	0	0
Omair Ali	7	69.3	417	20	148	12	12.33	3/13	34.75	2.14	0	0
Caitlin Baker	4	8	48	0	43	1	43.00	1/9	48.00	5.38	0	0
Ian Black	5	46.4	280	13	74	6	12.33	2/17	46.67	1.59	0	0
Renae Black	5	14.2	86	0	73	3	24.33	2/12	28.67	5.14	0	0
Alex Bowyer	2	23	138	2	55	4	13.75	2/16	34.50	2.39	0	0
Adrian Brunker	15	22.2	134	5	58	6	9.67	4/11	22.33	2.61	0	0
Vince Bulger	1	3.2	20	0	13	0	na	0/13		4.06	0	0
John Bull	4	35	210	11	77	6	12.83	3/40	35.00	2.20	0	0
Scott Cameron	11	90.3	543	13	284	8	35.50	2/12	67.88	3.15	0	0
Troy Cameron	12	71	426	14	202	17	11.88	3/21	25.06	2.85	0	0
Morgan Claridge	7	35	210	2	146	6	24.33	2/13	35.00	4.17	0	0
Tim Coggan	17	38	228	6	155	5	31.00	1/7	45.60	4.08	0	0
Peter Coleborne	22	17	102	3	49	2	24.50	1/9	51.00	2.88	0	0
Dave Corcoran	19	20	120	1	108	1	108.00	1/16	120.00	5.40	0	0
Andrew Critchlow	2	6.3	39	2	4	2	2.00	2/4	19.50	0.63	0	0
Colin Crouch	6	97.4	586	28	205	9	22.78	3/33	65.11	2.10	0	0
Nicholas Darman	10	15	90	4	53	3	17.67	3/14	30.00	3.53	0	0
Greg Dawes	10	29	174	4	92	4	23.00	2/31	43.50	3.17	0	0
Blake Dean	21	168.4	1012	23	564	32	17.63	3/10	31.63	3.35	0	0
Jonathon Dean	16	6.4	40	0	44	1	44.00	1/5	40.00	6.88	0	0
Rohan Ditton	13	26	156	3	84	3	28.00	2/20	52.00	3.23	0	0
Matthew Donnelly	12	75	450	14	191	6	31.83	3/17	75.00	2.55	0	0
Christopher Doyle	15	4	24	0	31	2	15.50	1/6	12.00	7.75	0	0
Troy Drayton	10	122.1	733	23	315	24	13.13	5/28	30.54	2.58	1	0
Vele Dukoski	21	101.1	607	14	340	21	16.19	3/22	28.90	3.36	0	0

				В	OW.	LIN	G					
Name	Mtchs	Overs	Balls	Mdns	Runs	Wkts	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5 wk Inn	10 wk Mtch
Andrew Fahey	15	3	18	0	9	0	na	0/9		3.00	0	0
Simon Fahey	2	20	120	1	66	3	22.00	2/20	40.00	3.30	0	0
John Fern	14	95.2	572	17	239	21	11.38	5/32	27.24	2.51	1	0
Kirsten Frkic	5	17	102	0	87	8	10.88	3/11	12.75	5.12	0	0
Rachel Frkic	5	15	90	0	84	2	42.00	2/23	45.00	5.60	0	0
Marty Frost	15	26	156	0	165	7	23.57	2/6	22.29	6.35	0	0
Michael Frost	15	6	36	0	32	0	na	0/2		5.33	0	0
Stephen Frost	6	49.4	298	13	106	12	8.83	3/16	24.83	2.15	0	0
Guy Gillespie	10	71.4	430	8	226	7	32.29	2/22	61.43	3.17	0	0
Joshua Gregory	11	1	6	0	2	0	na	0/2		2.00	0	0
Lea Hansen	8	80	480	18	200	18	11.11	6/14	26.67	2.50	1	0
Stephen Harris	6	25	150	5	67	1	67.00	1/15	150.00	2.68	0	0
Nicholas Harvey	14	35	210	8	106	7	15.14	3/17	30.00	3.03	0	0
Adam Heading	2	4	24	0	27	2	13.50	2/27	12.00	6.75	0	0
Scott Henry	1	10	60	0	33	4	8.25	4/33	15.00	3.30	0	0
Mark Higgs	20	247.5	1487	56	669	46	14.54	5/31	32.33	2.70	2	0
Peter Jensen	13	40	240	2	114	7	16.29	2/14	34.29	2.85	0	0
Sam Jensen	3	1	6	0	1	1	1.00	1/1	6.00	1.00	0	0
Simon Johnson	10	38	228	3	147	10	14.70	3/41	22.80	3.87	0	0
Steven Jolliffe	6	16.5	101	3	65	4	16.25	1/1	25.25	3.94	0	0
Victoria King	2	8	48	1	21	1	21.00	1/12	48.00	2.63	0	0
Jodi Knight	2	7	42	0	32	3	10.67	2/13	14.00	4.57	0	0
Anthony Laverty	3	3	18	0	19	1	19.00	1/19	18.00	6.33	0	0
Jeremy Macdonald	13	119.2	716	18	406	13	31.23	4/22	55.08	3.41	0	0
Simon Mackie	20	52	312	7	165	6	27.50	2/14	52.00	3.17	0	0
Simon Mann	5	14	84	6	25	1	25.00	1/13	84.00	1.79	0	0
Dean Mansfield	1	7	42	0	36	0	na	0/36		5.14	0	0

				В	OW.	LIN	G					
Name	Mtchs	Overs	Balls	Mdns	Runs	Wkts	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5 wk Inn	10 wk Mtch
James Martin	16	74.1	445	9	230	22	10.45	4/21	20.23	3.10	0	0
Shane Martin	14	40	240	3	130	2	65.00	1/18	120.00	3.25	0	0
Kiefer Martyn	18	4	24	1	14	2	7.00	2/4	12.00	3.50	0	0
Ron McGlashan	14	77.3	465	10	228	17	13.41	3/14	27.35	2.95	0	0
Michael Medved	12	3	18	0	25	0	na	0/25		8.33	0	0
David Monck	15	60.3	363	13	190	12	15.83	4/25	30.25	3.15	0	0
Shannon Mould	3	12	72	0	48	2	24.00	2/28	36.00	4.00	0	0
Jack Murdoch	19	32.5	197	4	164	8	20.50	2/17	24.63	5.05	0	0
Peter Newham	8	73.1	439	17	185	15	12.33	4/26	29.27	2.53	0	0
Alex Page	13	95	570	7	340	14	24.29	3/15	40.71	3.58	0	0
Vanessa Picker	5	18	108	0	63	2	31.50	2/7	54.00	3.50	0	0
Luke Ryan	15	128.5	773	24	416	23	18.09	4/83	33.61	3.24	0	0
Tom Shiner	1	4.5	29	1	15	1	15.00	1/15	29.00	3.33	0	0
Donald Shivakkumar	8	24.4	148	2	110	4	27.50	2/51	37.00	4.51	0	0
Lakshmn Shivakkumar	17	101.4	610	18	315	26	12.12	4/3	23.46	3.11	0	0
Balinder Singh Khillan	11	112.4	676	16	360	19	18.95	4/21	35.58	3.20	0	0
Mark Solway	13	145	870	21	372	22	16.91	4/25	39.55	2.57	0	0
Peter Solway	17	4.2	26	0	18	3	6.00	1/3	8.67	4.29	0	0
Darren Southwell	17	289	1734	61	710	51	13.92	6/51	34.00	2.46	2	0
Dean Southwell	20	189.4	1138	39	579	39	14.85	5/56	29.18	3.06	1	0
Michael Spaseski	19	42.2	254	6	181	8	22.63	2/13	31.75	4.29	0	0
Ben Stensrud	7	1	6	0	5	0	na	0/5		5.00	0	0
Dean Stewart	1	12	72	1	43	1	43.00	1/43	72.00	3.58	0	0
Philippa Taylor	3	6	36	0	19	1	19.00	1/6	36.00	3.17	0	0
Sam Taylor	18	133.1	799	16	529	22	24.05	4/46	36.32	3.97	0	0
Patrick Toole	22	1	6	0	4	0	na	0/4		4.00	0	0
Guy Walpole	13	12	72	0	48	4	12.00	2/19	18.00	4.00	0	0

Name WICKET-KEEPING & FIELDING    Mtchs   Catches   Catches   Stumpings   Run Outs   To											
Name	Mtchs	Catches (fielding)	(w/k)	Stumpings	Run Outs	Total					
Graeme Alexander	17	4	0	0	0	4					
Omair Ali	7	2	0	0	0	2					
Aaron Ayre	20	0	28	6	1	35					
Caitlin Baker	4	1	0	0	0	1					
Luke Bateman	1	1	0	0	0	1					
Ron Bates	7	1	0	0	0	1					
Andrew Beattie	3	0	2	0	0	2					
Justin Brownbill	10	1	0	0	0	1					
Adrian Brunker	15	1	8	1	1	11					
John Bull	4	3	0	0	0	3					
Scott Cameron	11	2	0	0	0	2					
Troy Cameron	12	2	0	0	2	4					
Matthew Chapman	3	0	1	0	0	1					
Morgan Claridge	7	2	0	0	0	2					
Tim Coggan	17	0	0	0	1	1					
Peter Coleborne	22	9	0	0	0	9					
Ryan Collier	1	1	0	0	0	1					
Dave Corcoran	19	13	0	0	0	13					
Stephen Cross	11	5	0	0	0	5					
Colin Crouch	6	1	0	0	0	1					
Con Danassis	0	1	0	0	0	1					
Nicholas Darman	10	1	0	0	0	1					
Greg Dawes	10	4	0	1	0	5					
Blake S Dean	21	19	0	0	1	20					
Jonathon Dean	16	8	0	0	3	11					
Rohan Ditton	13	4	0	0	0	4					
Matthew Donnelly	12	1	0	0	0	1					
Christopher Doyle	15	4	0	0	0	4					
Troy Drayton	10	2	0	0	2	4					
Vele Dukoski	21	5	0	0	2	7					
Andrew Fahey	15	3	0	0	0	3					
Kirsten Frkic	5	2	0	0	0	2					
Marty P Frost	15	4	0	0	0	4					
Michael J Frost	15	0	0	3	0	3					
Stephen Frost	6	5	0	0	1	6					
Guy D Gillespie	10	2	0	0	0	2					
Daryl Gough	7	2	0	0	0	2					
Joshua Gregory	11	5	0	0	0	5					
Lea Hansen	8	4	0	0	1	5					
Matthew R Harding	12	3	0	0	1	4					
Stephen Harris	6	1	0	0	0	1					
Nicholas S Harvey	14	2	0	0	1	3					
Scott Henry	1	1	0	0	0	1					
Mark Higgs	20	6	0	0	1	7					
Peter Jensen	13	4	0	0	1	5					
Sam Jensen	3	4	0	0	1	5					
Simon Johnson	10	2	0	0	0	2					
Steven Jolliffe	6	2	0	0	2	4					
Victoria King	2	1	0	0	1	2					
Jodi Knight	2	2	0	0	1	3					

WICK	WICKET-KEEPING & FIELDING											
Name	Mtchs	Catches (fielding)	Catches (w/k)	Stumpings	Run Outs	Total						
Georgina Leahey-Butler	7	0	0	0	1	1						
Jeremy Macdonald	13	3	0	0	1	4						
Simon Mackie	20	11	0	0	2	13						
Raglan Maddox	1	0	2	0	0	2						
Simon Mann	5	3	0	0	0	3						
Dean Mansfield	1	2	0	0	0	2						
Shane A Martin	14	6	0	0	2	8						
Kiefer Martyn	18	1	0	0	0	1						
Ron McGlashan	14	2	0	0	0	2						
Lewis McLennan	1	0	0	0	0	0						
Michael Medved	12	0	12	4	0	16						
David Monck	15	1	9	1	3	14						
Philip Moore	16	0	23	1	2	26						
Shannon Mould	3	1	0	0	0	1						
Jack Murdoch	19	9	0	0	0	9						
Alex Page	13	4	0	0	1	5						
Luke Ryan	15	1	0	0	0	1						
Donald Shivakkumar	8	1	0	0	0	1						
Lakshmn Shivakkumar	17	4	0	0	0	4						
Balinder Singh Khillan	11	2	0	0	0	2						
Dean Solway	14	6	0	0	2	8						
Mark Solway	13	3	0	0	0	3						
Peter Solway	17	9	0	0	1	10						
Darren Southwell	17	3	0	0	0	3						
Dean Southwell	20	3	0	0	1	4						
Michael Spaseski	19	11	0	0	4	15						
Ben Stensrud	7	1	0	0	1	2						
Sam Taylor	18	3	0	0	6	9						
Aaron Thorn	14	5	2	1	0	8						
Patrick Toole	22	7	0	0	1	8						
Guy Walpole	13	4	0	0	0	4						